
1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

1 

BEFORE THE 
FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

DOCKET NO. 010283-E1 

ELECTRIC VERSIONS OF THIS TRANSCRIPT ARE 
A CONVENIENCE COPY ONLY AND ARE NOT 

THE OFFIC IAL  TRANSCRIPT OF THE HEARING, 
THE .PDF VERSION INCLUDES PREFILED TESTIMONY. 

VOLUME 1 

PAGES 1 THROUGH 93 

'ROCEEDINGS : 

!EFORE : 

)ATE : 

TIME: 

'LACE : 

iEPORTED BY: 

HEARING 

CHAIRMAN E. LEON JACOBS 
COMMISSIONER LILA A.  JABER 
COMMISSIONER BRAULIO L. BAEZ 

F r i d a y ,  A u g u s t  31, 2001 

Commenced a t  9:30 a.m. 
Concl uded a t  2 : 29 p. m. 

B e t t y  E a s l  ey C o n f e r e n c e  C e n t  
Room 148 
4075 E s p l a n a d e  Way 
T a l l a h a s s e e ,  F l o r i d a  

JANE FAUROT, RPR 
C h i e f ,  O f f i c e  o f  H e a r i n g  R e p o r t e r  S e r v i c e s  
FPSC D i  v i  s i  on o f  Commi ssion C1 erk a n d  

A d m i n i s t r a t i v e  S e r v i c e s  
(850) 413 - 6732 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

2 

YPPEARANCES : 

JAMES McGEE, Senior Counsel , F1 or ida  Power 

Zorporation, Post O f f i ce  Box 14042, 3201 34th S t ree t  South, S t .  
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Zorporation. 
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in  behal f  o f  F lo r ida  Power & L igh t  Company. 

RUSSELL A. BADDERS, Beggs & Lane, 700 Blount Bui ld ing,  

3 West Garden Street ,  Post O f f i c e  Box 12950, Pensacola, F lo r ida  

32576-2950, appearing on behal f o f  Gul f Power Company. 

JAMES D. BEASLEY, Ausley & McMul len ,  Post O f f i c e  Box 

391, Tallahassee, F lo r ida  32302, appearing on behal f  o f  Tampa 

i l e c t r i c  Company. 

V I C K I  GORDON KAUFMAN and JOHN McWHIRTER, 

YlcWhi r t e r  , Reeves, McGl o t h l  i n, Davi dson, Dekker , 

(aufman, Arnold & Steen, 117 South Gadsden St ree t ,  

Tallahassee, F lo r  da 32301, appearing on behal f  o f  

-1orida Indus t r i a  Power Users Group. 

STEPHEN BURGESS, O f f i c e  o f  Pub1 i c  Counsel , 111 West 

Yladison Street ,  Room 812, Tal lahassee, F lo r i da  32399-1400, 

jppearing on behal f  o f  the  C i t i zens  o f  the  State o f  F lor ida.  
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P R O C E E D I N G S  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Good morning. We w i l l  go on the  

record f o r  the hearing today i n  Docket 010283-EI. 

Counsel, read the not ice.  

MR. KEATING: Pursuant t o  not ice,  t h i s  t ime and place 

have been set  f o r  a hearing i n  Docket Number 010283-EI, 

za l  cul  a t i on  o f  gains and appropriate regulatory  treatment f o r  

non - separated who1 esal e energy sal es by i nvestor - owned e l  e c t r i  c 

J t i  1 i ti es . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i  11 take appearances. 

MR. BEASLEY: Commissioners, I am James D. Beasley o f  

the l a w  firm o f  Ausley & McMullen, P.O. Box 391, Tallahassee, 

Flor ida,  32302. I am representing Tampa E l e c t r i c  Company. 

MR. BADDERS: Good morning, I am Russell Badders. 

I ' m  here on behal f  o f  Gul f  Power Company, and I am w i t h  the  l a w  

firm o f  Beggs and Lane, the  address i s  as shown i n  the  

preheari ng order. 

MR. McGEE: James McGee, Post O f f i ce  Box 14042, S t .  

Petersburg 33733 on behal f  o f  F lo r i da  Power Corporation. 

MR. CHILDS: Matthew Chi lds o f  the firm o f  Steel ,  

Hector & Davis. 

L igh t  Company. 

I ' m  appearing on behal f  o f  F lo r ida  Power and 

MS. KAUFMAN: John McWhirter and V ick i  Gordon Kaufman 

o f  the McWhirter Reeves l a w  firm, and we are appearing on 

behalf o f  the  F lo r ida  I n d u s t r i a l  Power Users Group. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. BURGESS: Steve Burgess w i th  the  O f f i c e  o f  the 

l u b l i c  Counsel representing the c i t i zens  o f  the State o f  

-1 or ida.  

MR. KEATING: Cochran Keating on behal f  o f  the 

:ommission s t a f f .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  As I understand it, 

there are l i m i t e d  pre l iminary matters. 

me motion, but t h a t  we don ' t  need t o  take t h a t  up today, a 

Eon f iden t ia l i t y  motion. 

I understand there i s  

MR. KEATING: There i s  a motion f o r  p ro tec t ive  order 

wts tanding re la ted  t o  Publ ic Counsel discovery t o  TECO, and 

i t ' s  my understanding t h a t  Publ ic Counsel d i d  not in tend t o  use 

that informat ion a t  hearing today. 

MR. BURGESS: That i s  correct ,  M r .  Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  We have a s t i p u l a t i o n  

D f  Issue 1, as I understanding it, as we l l?  

MR. KEATING: That i s  correct .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  With t h a t  - - and how 

about opening arguments? 

MR. BEASLEY: I have a b r i e f  opening argument. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  Any other par ty? 

MS. KAUFMAN: Yes, Commissioner, I t h i n k  we discussed 

a t  the prehearing conference t h a t  we would have the a b i l i t y  t o  

make an opening statement. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I was j u s t  t r y i n g  t o  f i n d  i f  there 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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was a ten-minute time limit. 
MR. KEATING: That ' s correct. 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very well. Mr. Beasley, you may 

begin . 
MR. BEASLEY: Commissioners, this should be a simple 

hearing. There are four issues in the prehearing order as the 
Chairman just pointed out. The first one is stipulated and we 
believe the last one should be, too. I will address that 
shortly. This leaves Issues 2 and 3. 

appropriate regulatory treatment for the cost of fuel and 
purchased power associated with nonseparated whol esal e sales. 
Issue 3 is the same question with respect to operating and 
maintenance expense, O&M expense. These are both fairly cut 
and dried regulatory treatment issues pertaining to fuel and 
purchased power cost and O&M expense associated with 
nonseparated whol esal e sales. 

Issue 2 is what is the 

These are not broad-sweeping issues, but are fairly 
scoped in nature. On Issue 2 we believe the record will show 
that all witnesses testifying on this issue with the exception 
of FIPUG's witness generally accept and support the staff's 
previously proposed action and what this Commission included in 
the PAA portion of its final order in the incentive docket. 
Witness Kordecki , however, will confirm for you that his 
testimony is specifically intended only to address the size of 
the incentive pot, so to speak, or what is eligible for the 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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incentive that you have approved and addresses nothing more. 
FIPUG's singular effort under Issue 2 we believe is 

an arbitrary effort to inflate through the use of a proxy for 
incremental cost the actual incremental cost of nonseparated 
sales and thereby reduce the calculated gain that may qualify 
under the incentive mechanism that the Commission has adopted. 

FIPUG opposed the concept of having incentives from 
the inception of the incentive proceeding, and tried again 
unsuccessfully on reconsideration to place limitations on the 
wholesale sales, and is using this PAA proceeding, we believe 
as one last attempt to create a disincentive for utilities to 
make nonseparated who1 esal e sales. 

Why would FIPUG take this approach? We believe for 
the very simple reason that if you can successfully discourage 
wholesale sales, it frees up generation and that can be used to 
serve interruptible customers. They have a better chance o f  

receiving without fear o f  interruption what amounts to firm 
service at significantly discounted interruptible rates. Wh 
this may be beneficial from the perspective of interruptible 
customers, it is economically harmful to the general body of 
utility customers and should not be condoned. 

Our witnesses wi 11 demonstrate that nonseparated 
sales as well as power purchases are equally valuable tools 
that enable utilities to run their systems efficiently, 
economically, and reliably. I think Mr. Kordecki even 
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acknowledges i n  the e a r l i e r  pa r t  o f  h i s  testimony t h a t  t h i s  i s  

the case. 

We would urge the  Commission t o  dec l ine FIPUG's 

i n v i t a t i o n  t o  b u i l d  an a r b i t r a r y  d is incent ive  i n t o  the  gains 

ca lcu la t ion ,  a d is incent ive  designed t o  bene f i t  i n t e r r u p t i b l e  

customers a t  the expense o f  a l l  customers. 

On Issue 3, t h i s  issue again addresses the  O&M piece 

o f  the  regulatory  treatment. Again, we are i n  agreement w i t h  

the s t a f f  and w i t h  what you put i n  your PAA order regarding the  

treatment o f  O&M expenses associated w i t h  nonseparated sales. 

Even Mr. Kordecki concedes t h a t  t r u l y  incremental costs may be 

appropr iately charged t o  the sales and c red i ted  t o  the  

u t i l i t y ' s  operating revenues, and t h a t  i s  what we favor. 

On Issue 4 t h i s  has t o  do w i t h  the  proper method f o r  

implementing the incent ive  mechanism the  Commission approved i n  

your f i n a l  order i n  the  incent ives docket. We bel ieve t h a t  the  

evidence w i l l  support t he  methodology se t  f o r t h  i n  a September 

20, 2000 s t a f f  memorandum t o  a l l  the  pa r t i es  i n  the  fue l  

adjustment proceeding, and I th ink  FIPUG's own witness w i l l  

agree t h a t  the  s t a f f ' s  approach i s  f i n e  w i t h  him given what the  

Commission approved i n  the  way o f  an incent ive  mechanism. And 

t h a t  i s  pa r t  o f  the  basis f o r  our b e l i e f  t h a t  t h i s  issue should 

be s t ipu lated.  

And w i th  tha t ,  Commissioners, we are prepared t o  

I d i d  have one pre l iminary matter regarding a proceed. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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deposi t ion t ransc r ip t  o f  Mr. Kordecki. We took h i s  deposi t ion 

on August 21st ,  and I have spoken w i th  Mr. McWhirter about 

in t roducing the deposit ion t ransc r ip t  i n t o  the record o f  t h i s  

proceeding. 

would ask t h a t  i t  be introduced i n t o  evidence. 

I bel ieve he i s  i n  agreement t o  do t h a t  and I 

MR. McWHIRTER: Mr. Chairman, as I pointed out t o  

Mr. Beasley e a r l i e r  t h i s  morning, I have no object ion t o  the 

in t roduc t ion  o f  Mr. Kordecki 's deposi t ion i n t o  evidence t o  be 

used f o r  whatever purpose. However, he has attached t o  the 

deposi t ion two exh ib i ts ,  ne i ther  o f  which were prepared by nor 

sponsored by Mr. Kordecki . And i n  the  normal course o f  a 

hearing, as you know, Mr. Chairman, someone has t o  sponsor an 

e x h i b i t  and be cross-examined on i t  and expla in  the e x h i b i t  and 

then you can use i t  w i th  respect t o  other people. 

I n  t h i s  instance the  deposi t ion w i l l  demonstrate t h a t  

Mr. Kordecki had never - - had on ly  seen one o f  those and had 

forgot ten the  contents o f  it, and the  other one was prepared by 

M r .  Beasley as the  deposi t ion went on. So I would respectfu l y  

suggest t h a t  the  deposi t ion go i n  bu t  the  exh ib i t s  be withhe d 

u n t i l  they are proper ly  i n  evidence. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Kordecki i s  going t o  take the 

stand, i s  t h a t  correct? 

MR. McWHIRTER: Yes. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I f  i t ' s  okay, why don ' t  we j u s t  

deal w i th  t h a t  a t  the time he i s  on the  stand. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. BEASLEY: I t h i n k  t h a t  would be p e r f e c t l y  

appropriate. And i f  you could admit the deposi t ion t ransc r ip t ,  

I w i l l  substantiate admission o f  the two exh ib i t s  when Mr. 

(ordecki i s  on the  stand. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: A l l  r i g h t .  We can go ahead and 

nark i t  now and then deal w i t h  i t s  admission a t  the  time Mr. 

(ordecki takes the stand. 

MR. BEASLEY: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  mark t h a t  as E x h i b i t  1. 

(Exh ib i t  1 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do you have copies f o r  us, 

Mr. Beasley? 

MR. BEASLEY: Yes, s i r ,  we are d i s t r i b u t i n g  those 

now. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr . Badders, do you have an opening 

s t a t  emen t ? 

MR. BADDERS: We waive our opening argument. 

MR. McGEE: As does F lo r i da  Power. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Chi lds.  

MR. CHILDS: I have no opening statement, bu t  we d i d  

discuss a t  the prehearing conference an e x h i b i t  which was a 

s t a f f  memorandum dated September 20, 2000. 

t h a t  very shor t l y .  

I w i l l  be o f f e r i n g  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do we need t o  have t h a t  as an 

exh ib i t?  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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MR. CHILDS: I w i l l  be asking t h a t  i t  be marked a t  

t h a t  t ime. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  Ms. Kaufman or Mr. 

McWhi r t e r .  

MR. McWHIRTER: Ms. Kaufman had prepared a b r i l l i a n t  

opening statement, but I superseded her and sa id I would l i k e  

t o  make one myself, Mr. Chairman. And the reason I want t o  do 

i t  i s  t h a t  u t i 1  i t y  t a l k  i s  complex and arcane t o  some degree t o  

the common man, and i t ' s  hard even f o r  me. And what I would 

l i k e  t o  do i s  k ind o f  put i n  layman's language where we are i n  

t h i s  case. 

I n  t h i s  case, Mr. Beasley i n  h i s  opening statement 

ind icated t h a t  i t  had been going on f o r  some years. Ac tua l l y  

i t  has been going on since 1989. And several years ago your 

s t a f f  recommended t h a t  the incent ive be el iminated al together,  

and t h a t  was set f o r  hearing and the s t a f f  was supported by the 

Publ ic Counsel and FIPUG a t  those hearings. And dur ing the 

course o f  t h a t  hearing which culminated i n  the  order which i s  

the basis f o r  what we are doing today i t  was explained t o  the 

Commission by the u t i l i t i e s  t h a t  the wholesale market as i t  

stands i n  the 19 - -  i n  t h i s  century i s  d i f f e r e n t  than i t  was i n  

the past century. 

And the incent ive t h a t  you o r i g i n a l l y  s ty led  was t o  

encourage u t i l i t i e s  t h a t  had capaci ty t o  share t h a t  capacity 

w i th  one another on the basis o f  cost. And when t h a t  capacity 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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was shared, ratepayers real l y  benefitted because new plants 
weren't b u i l t ,  and the most economical p l a n t  i n  the entire 
State of Florida was dispatched, and there was good reason t o  
encourage ut i l i t ies  t o  trade power a t  cost. 

B u t  then the competitive world came t o  play i n  the 
wholesale market and u t i l i t i es  were allowed t o  sell power for 
market prices or stepped up cost prices between one another, 
and sales then switched from the old mechanism of going through 
w h a t  we call the Florida broker on a cost basis t o  a new basis 

i t s  own trading room and they went 
ained i n  the previous hearing - -  
da i ly  transactions and long-term 

where each u t i l i t y  opened up 

i n t o  - - and this was a1 1 exp 
they went i n t o  transactions, 
transactions. 

And the Commission studied the matter and they 
concluded t h a t  customers benefit from these who1 esal e 
transactions and the incentive should now be broadened not just 
on the cost-based sales i n  the brokerage system, but  should be 
broadened t o  a l l  wholesale transactions. There was a caveat, 
however, and the caveat was t h a t  i t  had t o  be new wholesale 
transactions and wha t  had gone before you d i d n ' t  get an 
incentive u n t i l  you reached this threshold. So we got two 
incentives t o  make wholesale sales, one is  t o  make as much as 
you can t o  get up t o  the threshold, and then the second 
incentive was once you have reached the threshold you s tar t  
making money. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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And the incent ive comes about t h i s  way. Customers - -  
and you need t o  know t h a t  i t  deals w i t h  nonseparated sales. 

And a nonseparated sale, o f  course, as you know, i s  where the 

u t i  i t y  plant i s  i n  the r e t a i l  r a t e  base and the  customers are 

pay ng a l l  the carry ing costs on t h a t  p lan t .  But i t ' s  not  - -  
the u t i l i t y  doesn't  need t h a t  power a t  t h a t  moment i n  t ime o r  

f o r  a short  per iod o f  t ime, and so i t  can go out  and s e l l  the  

power elsewhere. And when i t  s e l l s  the  power elsewhere the  

proceeds f low back i n t o  the company. 

And the question i s ,  we l l ,  when you have so ld t h a t  

power, who should get the  proceeds. And the  o l d  Commission 

r u l e  and the r u l e  now f o r  long-term sales i s  t h a t  since the 

customers pay the  car ry ing  costs on the  plant and since they 

pay 100 percent guarantee o f  fue l  cost o f  a l l  f ue l  t h a t  i s  

burned i n  t h a t  p l  ant, 1 ogic would say, we1 1 , when money comes 

i n  from s e l l i n g  t h a t  e l e c t r i c i t y  the customers ought t o  get the 

benef i t .  And you have set  up a mechanism so t h a t  the revenue 

from those wholesale sales f low back t o  the  customers. 

But you d o n ' t  want the u t i l i t y  t o  s i t  on t h e i r  d u f f  

and not  make those sales, so you sa id l e t ' s  g ive  them an 

incent ive t o  do it, and you gave them the  incent ive.  But the 

incent ive on ly  deals w i t h  sales t h a t  make a p r o f i t .  You 

douldn ' t  want sales t h a t  d o n ' t  make a p r o f i t .  And there was a 

recogni t ion i n  your Order Number 1744 t h a t  was issued on 

September 26th l a s t  year, t h a t  the revenue f low has t o  be dea l t  
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w i t h  and has t o  go in to  different channels. 
And the f i r s t  channel - -  and I would like t o  read 

your language, because really i t ' s  why we are here today. 

says, "Accordingly, we f i n d  t h a t  each IOU shall measure the 
ga in  on the sale - - I 1  t h a t  i s  this profit t h a t  you make - -  "from 
nonseparated wholesale sales - - I 1  this i s  one where the p l a n t  i s  
i n  the retail rate base - -  "by subtracting the sum of i t s  
incremental cost from the revenue received for each sale. 
Further, we f ind  t h a t  the calculation of the incremental cost 
shall  include, but  not be limited t o  - - I '  not be limited t o  - -  
"incremental fuel cost, incremental SOT emission a1 lowance 
cost, incremental O&M cost." So i f  there are other costs, they 
can a l so  be collected. 

I t  

Now, imagine a $100 sale, and they have got  $100 i n  

revenue. So wha t  happens t o  t h a t ?  When the $100 i n  revenue 
comes i n ,  the f i r s t  t h i n g  t h a t  happens is  wha t  was the fuel 
burned t o  make the sale. And since the customers have pa id  

t h a t  fuel, whatever t h a t  fuel cost was for t h a t  sale, i t  comes 
i n t o  the u t i l i t y  and the u t i l i t y  puts  i t  i n  the pot for fuel 
cost recovery, and t h a t  reduces fuel cost customers must have 
t o  pay. 

And then because i n  many instances you have a coal 
burning p l a n t  and there are SO2 allowances t h a t  the u t i l i t y  had 

t o  buy i n  order t o  burn high sulfur coal, and customers have 
paid  for the SO2 allowances i n  their fuel surcharge or through 
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the environmental clause, then i f  there are any revenues t h a t  
are attributable t o  t h a t  they go i n t o  t h a t  clause. Then the 
next bunch of revenue i s  O&M costs. Now, O&M costs are pretty 
hard t o  identify. 

And i f  you have looked a t  the discovery the staff 
sent out and the responses, you will see t h a t  i t  was very 
difficult for the ut i l i t ies  t o  identify. B u t  the significance 
of t h a t  i s  any money t h a t  is  attributed t o  O&M cost goes 100 

percent t o  the ut i l i ty .  
operating revenues, but  u n t i l  you have a base rate case there 
i s  no adjustment. So there is  an incentive for a u t i l i t y  t o  
jack up - -  I'm not suggesting any u t i l i t i es  do t h a t ,  but  I'm 

suggesting t o  you t h a t  i f  they wanted t o  improve their 
revenues, they could jack up the O&M costs and say, now there 
i s  no profit i n  this particular sale because we're t a k i n g  i t  

a l l  t o  recover these incremental O&M costs. 

I t  says i t  flows above-the-line t o  

So w h a t  we will testify i s  t h a t  i f  t h a t  i s  going t o  
happen, since the u t i l i t y  is  going t o  get 100 percent of t h a t  
money and the customers aren't going t o  get any portion of i t ,  

we t h i n k  t h a t  logic would suggest t h a t  they prove t h a t  they 
really d id  have an addi t iona l  O&M cost t h a t  was attributable t o  
this sale. 
there and a guy t h a t  i s  operating i t  i n  a control room, and i t  

says we are now producing 90 megawatts and we have a demand for 
another 10 ,  jack i t  up a l i t t l e  b i t .  And he pushes a but ton 

I f  you have got  a 100-megawatt generator s tanding  
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t h a t  jacks i t  up and another 10 goes. T h a t  i s  not  a whole l o t  

)f new costs. So we would like t o  f i n d  out wha t  those O&M 

zosts are i f  the u t i l i t y  i s  going t o  keep 100 percent. And 

that is  one of the things we t a l k  about .  
The other t h i n g  i s ,  and w h a t  happens i s  t h a t  

J t i l i t i e s  are very active i n  the short term and spot wholesale 
narket now t h a t  there i s  a competitive marketplace, and they 
we a l l  excited about i t  and have their trading room and these 
guys w i t h  the telephones and gir ls  w i t h  the telephones trying 
to make deals every day. And sometimes they make good deals 
and sometimes they make bad deals and sometimes they buy power 
a t  a high cost and then sell power a t  a low cost. 

Well, we d o n ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  i f  there is  a p ro f i t  i n  the 
low cost - -  i f  you are calculating the profit i n  the low cost 
sale, you s h o u l d n ' t  ignore the loss on the more expensive sale 
that is  going on a t  the same time. There are some times t h a t  
the more expensive sale has already occurred. Now, this is  
p l a n t  t h a t  the customers have pa id  for a l l  of the fuel and a l l  

the carrying costs on t h a t  p l a n t .  And so sometimes there is  a 
sale simultaneously and there i s  a loss on the transaction when 
you match the two together. 

And we t h i n k  t h a t  the u t i l i t y  should not say t h a t  
there i s  a profit on t h a t  simultaneous transaction and 

therefore they shouldn't get an incentive. The u t i l i t i es  
aren't a t  any greater risk because the customers are paying a l l  
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the cost.  The only  t h i n g  we are doing i s  t ak ing  away the 

.eward f o r  having made a mistake. 

The f i n a l  t h ing  - -  w e l l ,  I guess t h a t ' s  r e a l l y  

about - -  oh, yes, the f i n a l  t h ing  i s  Mr. Beasley sa id t h i s  i s  a 

3eal f o r  the i n t e r r u p t i b l e  customers. They want t o  increase 

the r e l i a b i l i t y  so they are less  l i k e l y  t o  get  in ter rupted.  

de l l ,  I w i l l  guarantee you t h a t  i s  what we would very much l i k e  

to  do. Because i f  a u t i l i t y  has a generator t h a t  could serve 

us w i t h  the fue l  cost o f  something l i k e  - -  t h i s  i s  a generator 

rJe are already paying f o r  and they can serve us a t  a $20 fue l  

cost, we would ra ther  t h a t  we get t h a t  power ra ther  than i f  

they are paying $500 because t h a t  power i s n ' t  ava i lab le  f o r  

t h e i r  nonf i  r m  customers. 

And we th ink  t h a t  i t  makes a l o t  o f  sense not  t o  have 

those k ind  o f  sales going on. And a l l  the u t i l i t i e s  t h i n k  i t  

makes sense. And i f  they have got a nonfirm wholesale sale, 

they are pe r fec t l y  w i l l i n g ,  o r  i t  seems t h a t  they are pe r fec t l y  

w i l l i n g  t h a t  t h a t  sale be cu t  o f f .  But there i s  a h ia tus 

before i t  i s  cu t  o f f .  And we th ink  t h a t  dur ing  t h a t  h ia tus 

per iod some consideration should be given t o  t h a t  f ac t .  

Now, these gains are calculated a t  t he  end o f  the  

year. And so i t ' s  not  a l l  o f  t h a t  d i f f i c u l t  t o  keep a runn 

t o t a l  and look a t  the end o f  the  year, do we have a gain o r  

we have a loss? I f  you don ' t  have a gain then there i s  no 

incent ive,  because dur ing the  course o f  the year you d i d n ' t  
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make the  deal t ha t  benef i t ted  the customers. And the  whole 

Commission's requirement i s  t h a t  customers bene f i t ,  t h a t ' s  why 

you are g i v ing  them the incent ive.  

So we would respec t fu l l y  suggest t o  you t h a t  there 

are two l i t t l e  modif icat ions,  and tha t  i s  when you have a sale 

o f  e l e c t r i c i t y  a t  the same t ime you are buying e l e c t r i c i t y ,  

when you are t r y i n g  t o  f i gu re  out the cost o f  t he  j o i n t  

t ransact ion t o  use the higher cost power. The higher charge 

t h a t  was given t o  the customers. The u t i l i t y  i s  no worse o f f .  

It i s  s t i l l  ge t t i ng  f u l l  recovery o f  i t s  ca r ry ing  cost. It i s  

s t i l l  making a p r o f i t  on the  p lan t .  It i s  s t i l l  ge t t i ng  a f u l l  

recovery o f  a l l  o f  i t s  fue l  costs. The on ly  t h i n g  i t ' s  doing 

i s  not  ge t t i ng  a reward on t h a t  type t ransact ion.  

The other t h i n g  i s  since you can siphon o f f  a l o t  o f  

the revenue t h a t  comes i n  from these sales by a l l oca t i ng  O&M 

costs t o  it, we want t o  be sure t h a t  there i s  some mechanism i n  

place t h a t  the  O&M costs are i d e n t i f i e d  and are c l e a r l y  proven 

t o  be a t t r i bu tab le  t o  these incremental sales. 

And I went on too  long and I apologize f o r  tha t ,  but  

i t  seems t o  me l i k e  such a simple th ing .  And as we t a l k  about 

i t  i t  becomes more and more complex. And i t  j u s t  r e a l l y  

bothered me t h a t  we j u s t  cou ldn ' t  put  the  p lan  on the tab le  f o r  

you i n  a simple fashion. And t h a t ' s  what we are going t o  t r y  

t o  do today. Thank you f o r  your t ime and a t ten t i on .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you, Mr. McWhirter. As 
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a1 ways, i ns t ruc t i ve .  

Mr. Burgess. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Our concern 

i n  t h i s  case i s  t h a t  the  Commission adopt an order w i th  regard 

t o  the treatment t h a t  w i l l  requi re  consistency from one company 

t o  the  next. And we th ink  t h a t  i s  important no t  on ly  f o r  the  

fa i rness t o  the customers, but  f o r  the  fa i rness t o  the 

companies themselves, t h a t  they can be assured t h a t  each o f  t he  

other companies are being t rea ted  i n  the  same fashion or  

required t o  t r e a t  these sales i n  the  same fashion. 

And as Mr. McWhirter i d e n t i f i e d ,  one o f  the  primary 

areas o f  spec i f i c  concern ar ises when a company i s  buying i n  a t  

a higher p r i ce  than they might be s e l l i n g  out a pa r t i cu la r  

nonseparated wholesale sale. This i s  not  a cost ,  as I th ink  

Mr. McWhirter a r t i cu la ted  very we l l ,  t h i s  i s  not  a cost  t h a t  

should be borne by the  u t i l i t y ' s  customers. 

Now, i f  I understand the discovery and the  statements 

o f  the  u t i  

exceptions 

except i ons 

i s  t h a t  wh 

i t i e s ,  i n  p r i n c i p l e  they agree w i t h  t h i s  w i t h  some 

And I ' m  sure they can adequately address the  

tha t  they t h i n k  may be appl icable.  But our problem 

l e  the u t i l i t i e s  agree i n  p r i n c i p l e  t h a t  customers 

shouldn ' t  pay f o r  a higher cost  purchase when a lower cost  

sale - - nonseparated sa le i s  being made on system, there i s  no 

statement tha t  would impose t h a t  p o l i c y  by the  Commission. And 

we th ink  i t  i s  important t h a t  such a statement be made. 
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Now, one way t o  make tha t  statement i s  i n  a very 

de ta i led  or  i n  a more de ta i led  d e f i n i t i o n  o f  incremental cost. 

I f  incremental costs are used t o  def ine what t o  do about the  

s i t ua t i on  when you have a purchase a t  a higher p r i c e  than a 

sale, then perhaps t h i s  takes care o f  t he  s i t ua t i on .  Right 

now, a t  l eas t  as I understand Order Number 1744, the  PAA, i t  

does not give a de ta i l ed  enough d e f i n i t i o n  t h a t  would requi re 

the treatment t h a t  M r .  McWhirter has suggested. 

And so we th ink  t h a t  i t  can be developed w i th  a more 

de ta i led  d e f i n i t i o n  as t o  what incremental costs are t o  cover 

a1 1 the probabi 1 i t i e s  and requi re t h i s  consi stency o f  treatment 

from one company t o  the  next when s i t ua t i ons  ar ise .  And as t o  

what the exceptions are when you might consider t h a t  a 

contemporaneous sal e o f f  - system which i s  1 ower than a purchase 

onto the system might be j u s t i f i e d  i n  ce r ta in  circumstances. 

Well, perhaps t h a t  can a l l  be put i n  there.  But i t  needs t o  be 

addressed, as I say, f o r  t he  consistency, f o r  t he  proper 

treatment o f  the  u t i l i t y  customers who are bear ing the  cost o f  

the e n t i r e  amount o f  the  system tha t  i s  producing these 

nonseparated sales as wel l  as fa i rness t o  other companies t h a t  

might be - -  t o  each o f  the  companies so t h a t  they know t h a t  i t  

i s  being t rea ted  statewide i n  a s i m i l a r  fashion. 

We a lso be l ieve  t h a t  the incremental costs, the 

incremental O&M costs t h a t  Mr. McWhirter addressed, we bel ieve 

tha t  these should be dea l t  w i th  as base r a t e  costs and t h a t  
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they should not  go i n t o  the ca l cu la t i on  o f  the wholesale sale. 

I mean, o f  the gain on wholesale sale. Now, again, as Mr. 

McWhirter ind icates,  as a matter o f  p r i n c i p l e  perhaps they 

should. Our problem, again, i s  exac t ly  as FIPUG's, t h a t  i t  i s  

so d i f f i c u l t  t o  be ce r ta in  t h a t  you have i d e n t i f i e d  incremental 

O&M costs t h a t  these are costs t h a t  should not  go i n t o  the  

reduct ion o f  the  gain t h a t  goes back t o  the  c r e d i t  o f  the  

customers through the  fue l  adjustment clause. 

We have taken the  p o s i t i o n  - - 
COMMISSIONER JABER: Mr. Burgess, as a matter o f  

po l i cy ,  i f  you include those incremental costs i n  base ra tes  

and they are used t o  o f f s e t  earnings, you wouldn't  have an 

increase obviously. You wouldn' t  have a problem. But f o r  

those companies t h a t  inc lud ing  the  incremental cost  i n  base 

rates would a c t u a l l y  requi re  them t o  come i n  f o r  a r a t e  case, 

i s n ' t  t h a t  more harmful t o  the  consumer? 

MR. BURGESS: I f ,  i n  f a c t ,  t h a t  happened I t h i n k  you 

could make t h a t  case, t h a t  you are a t  t h a t  po in t .  I d o n ' t  

t h ink  t h a t  they r i s e  anywhere near t o  the l eve l  t h a t  they would 

be a major con t r i bu t i ng  fac to r  t o  a r a t e  case. And one o f  the 

th ings t h a t  I would po in t  out ,  i f  I have understood the  

responses o f  t he  companies, t h a t  there  are companies t h a t  t h e i r  

own in te rna l  p o l i c y  i s  t o  inc lude them on ly  i n  base r a t e  

ca lcu la t ion  and not  t o  include them as an o f f s e t  t o  the  gain 

tha t  goes through t o  the b e n e f i t  o f  the  customers p rec i se l y  
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because o f  the m a t e r i a l i t y  o f  it. 

And t h a t  gets back t o ,  again, the consistency o f  the 

treatment. That whatever - - i f  a company i s  doing tha t ,  and i t  

i s  a reasonable approach, we th ink  t h a t  they should not be 

d i  sadvantaged because o f  t h i s  treatment. That a1 1 companies 

should adopt the same treatment, t h a t  the Commission should 

assure t h a t  a l l  companies adopt t h i s  treatment. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: But I don ' t  want t o  be 

counter-productive w i t h  the incent ive.  L e t ' s  say t h i s  

Commission a t  the  end o f  the  hearing f inds  t h a t  i t  i s  

appropriate t o  include those incremental cost regardless o f  the 

s ize i n  base rates.  Could t h a t  ever be counter-productive t o  

the incent ive where the company might not be aggressive i n  

making those wholesale sales because they would worry t h a t  they 

cou ldn ' t  get recovery through a r a t e  case or  i t ' s  no t  worth 

f i l i n g  a r a t e  case fo r .  

MR. BURGESS: Again, I t h i n k  t h e o r e t i c a l l y  you could 

make a case f o r  t ha t .  

matter, no. 

t h ink  tha t  i s  a po in t  t h a t  I intend t o  ask most o f  t he  company 

witnesses how they t r e a t  these p a r t i c u l a r  costs and perhaps 

each company can address tha t .  My understanding i s  as a 

p rac t ica l  matter, no, i t ' s  not  going t o  happen. I t ' s  no t  

s ign i f i can t  enough t o  be an o f f s e t  t o  the incent ives t h a t  they 

have t o  aggressively pursue these o f f  - system sales. 

I th ink  the  answer i s  as a p rac t i ca l  

I th ink  the companies can speak t o  t h a t ,  and I 
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We have made a couple of other points simply i n  our 
positions t o  the issues t h a t  have been defined for this case. 
We believe t h a t  the reward t h a t  i s  granted should be based on 
actual historical d a t a ,  even i f  perhaps i t  i s  of a time period 
t h a t  i s  offset from the time period for which the other 
calculations of the fuel adjustment clause are being 
established. We just t h i n k  i t  i s  a better principle t o  say i f  

you are going t o  give them a reward for exceeding a certain 
threshold, l e t ’ s  be certain of wha t  i t  i s  rather t h a n  estimates 
as t o  w h a t  i t  will be for future periods and impose i t  just 
based on historical da ta  rather t h a n  projected. 

And we believe t h a t  the f i r s t  three-year average t h a t  
is  used should be a floor for any future thresholds t o  prevent 
the possibi l i ty  of a ,  again,  a t  least theoretical perverse 
incentive of a company actually dropping down below a level. 
And since there is  no penalty for a downside, they drop below a 
level t o  reduce the average w i t h  the future action being t o  
increase above i t  and thereby get a reward because the average 
has been reduced. And so we t h i n k  t h a t  a floor threshold 
should be imposed a t  the beginning, a t  the outset o f  this 
particular effort by the Commission. 

I will say t h a t  w i t h  regard t o  some of these things, 
and w i t h  regard t o  the examination as t o  whether various 
principles imposed by the Commission are being met, t h a t  i t  

looks from w h a t  we have ascertained from some of the discovery 
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tha t  i t  may be an evolv ing process. That there may be lessons 

learned as we go through t h a t  perhaps w i l  need t o  be addressed 

i n  fu tu re  fue l  adjustment i n  the  0001 dockets. Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we l l .  I f  there are no other 

pre l iminary matters, I t h i n k  we can swear the witnesses. 

S t a f f ?  

MR. KEATING: S t a f f  does not have an opening 

statement, but  perhaps a t  t h i s  po in t  i t  would be appropriate 

f o r  us t o  o f f e r  what we have prepared as a composite exh ib i t .  

I bel ieve we have given a copy t o  a l l  the  pa r t i es  and t o  each 

o f  the  Commissioners. 

repor ter ,  though. It i s  my understanding t h a t  t h i s  composite 

exh ib i t  could be s t i pu la ted  i n t o  the record. 

I t h i n k  we may have missed the  cour t  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  mark i t  as Exh ib i t  2, and 

i t  i s  a composite discovery exh ib i t .  And i f  there are no 

objections, we can enter Exh ib i t  2 i n t o  the  record. 

(Exh ib i t  2 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  and admitted 

i n t o  the  record. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: With tha t ,  a l l  the witnesses who 

are here t o  t e s t i f y ,  would you please stand and ra i se  your 

r i g h t  hand. 

(Witnesses sworn. ) 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Thank you. You may be seated. 

Mr. McGee. 

MR. McGEE: I t h i n k  M r .  Portuondo, the  F lo r ida  Power 
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ditness i s  f i r s t  i n  the prehearing order, and we would c a l l  him 

t o  the stand. 

JAVIER PORTUONDO 

das ca l l ed  as a witness on behal f  o f  F lo r i da  Power Corporation, 

and, having been du ly  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  as fo l lows:  

DIRECT EXAM1 NATION 

3Y MR. McGEE: 

Q S i r ,  would you g ive us your name and business address 

f o r  the record, please. 

A My name i s  Javier Portuondo, my business address i s  

P.O. Box 14042, S t .  Petersburg, F lo r i da  33733. 

Q 

:orporation? 

A 

Q 

And would you s ta te  your p o s i t i o n  w i th  F lo r ida  Power 

I am the  Manager o f  Regulatory Services f o r  F lo r ida .  

Mr. Portuondo, do you have before you a document 

2 n t i t l e d  F lo r ida  Power Corporation, Docket Number 010283, 

l i r e c t  Testimony o f  Javier Portuondo cons is t ing  o f  s i x  pages? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q Was t h a t  prepared by you as your d i r e c t  testimony f o r  

t h i s  hearing today? 

A Yes. 

Q And do you have any addi t ions or  correct ions t h a t  

ieed t o  be made t o  t h a t  prepared testimony? 

A No. 

MR. McGEE: With t h a t ,  Mr. Chairman, we would ask 
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tha t  Mr. Portuondo's d i r e c t  testimony be inser ted  i n t o  the 

record as though read. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without object ion,  show Mr. 

Portuondo's d i r e c t  testimony i s  entered i n t o  the  record as 

though read. 

MR. McGEE: Thank you. 
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A. 

FLORIDA POWER CORPORATION 
DOCKET No. 01 0283-El 

DIRECT TESTIMONY OF 
JAVIER PORTUONDO 

Please state your name and business address. 

My name is Javier Portuondo. My business address is Post Office Box 

14042, St. Petersburg, Florida 33733. 

By whom are you employed and in what capacity? 

I am employed by Florida Power Corporation (Florida Power or the 

Company) in the capacity of Manager, Regulatory Services. 

Please provide a brief outline of your educational background and 

business experience. 

I graduated from the University of South Florida in 1992 with a Bachelor’s 

Degree in Business Administration, majoring in Accounting. I began my 

employment with Florida Power in 1985. During my 16 years I have held 

various staff accounting positions within Financial Services in such areas 

as General Accounting, Tax Accounting, Property Plant & Depreciation 

Accounting and Regulatory Accounting. In 1996 I became Manager, 

Regulatory Services. My present responsibilities include the areas of fuel 

and purchase power cost recovery filings, capacity cost recovery filings, 

energy conservation cost recovery issues, earnings surveillance reporting, 

and rate design and cost of service issues. 
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Q. 

A. 

Q. 

A. 

What is the purpose of your direct testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to address the issues raised by Item 1 in 

Part Ill of Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El in Docket No. 991779-El (the 

Order), which concerns the treatment of incremental costs in calculating 

the gain on non-separated wholesale sales, and, in particular, the 

modification of Item 1 proposed by the Florida Industrial Power Users 

Group (FIPUG) in its protest of Part Ill of the Order. 

What is Florida Power’s position on the modification of Item 1 

proposed by FIPUG? 

Florida Power believes Item 1 is sufficiently clear and produces the proper 

result without the need for significant modification, particularly the 

confusing and unsound modification proposed by FIPUG. Item 1 states 

simply that: 

“Each IOU shall credit its fuel and purchased power cost 

recovery clause for an amount equal to the incremental fuel cost 

of generating the energy for each such sale.” 

As long as Item 1’s reference to “the incremental fuel cost of generating 

the energy” is understood in a broad sense to encompass the incremental 

cost of energy generated either by the utility or by another and then 

purchased by the utility, as I believe was intended, Item 1 succinctly 

accomplishes any legitimate purpose that may be intended by FIPUG’s 

proposed modification. Moreover, it does so without the baggage of 

FIPUG’s perplexing language or its inappropriate inclusion of buy-through 

purchases. 
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Q. 

A. 

If, however, the Commission should have a concern that the quoted 

phrase may not be understood to include both utility generation and utility 

purchases (whichever is at the increment), a simple clarification to that 

effect is all that would be required. (Such as “... the incremental enerav 

cost of generating or purchasinq the energy ...”) Such a concern certainly 

should not be the basis for adopting a problematic modification that would 

only serve to exacerbate the potential for reaching an improper result, as 

FIPUG’s proposal would do. 

You have described FIPUG’s proposed modification of Item 1 as 

confusing and unsound. Please explain this characterization. 

FIPUG proposes to modify Item 1 by adding the following highlighted 

language: 

“Each IOU shall credit its fuel and purchased power cost 

recovery clause for an amount equal to the incremental fuel cost 

of generating the energy for each such sale or in the event 

wholesale power is purchased to replace the power sold. when 

the incremental cost of replacement purchased power is more 

than the applicable fuel cost factor. the clause or the buv throuah 

customer for whom the replacement power is purchased shall be 

credited with the price difference.” 

As mentioned above, it may be that one of FIPUG’s objectives for this 

modification (putting aside for the moment its proposed credit to buy- 

through customers) is to ensure that the incremental cost of a sale used 

in calculating the gain encompasses a utility’s purchased power, as well 
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as its own generation. If so, that objective can be realized by Item 1 , as 

is, or with only minor clarification. FIPUG’s approach, on the other hand, 

is so convoluted that it is actually counterproductive to the objective of 

properly recognizing the incremental cost associated with purchased 

power. 

This can be seen immediately in the first phrase of FIPUG’s 

modification, which inexplicably attempts to limit the recognition of 

purchased power to situations where the “power is purchased to replace 

the power sold.” For purposes of calculating the gain on a sale, it is 

totally irrelevant when or why a purchase commitment was made, so long 

as the cost of the purchase was incremental at the time of the sale. To 

illustrate the problem with FIPUG’s qualifier, suppose a purchase of 

several weeks’ duration had been arranged long before and independent 

of a previously unexpected sale that was made possible by several days 

of unseasonably mild weather during this purchase. Suppose further that 

this pre-existing purchase happened to represent the utility’s incremental 

cost at the time of the sale. Under FIPUG’s proposed modification] this 

purchase would not be eligible for consideration in calculating the gain on 

the sale because it had not been “purchased to replace the power sold.” 

Such an obviously wrong result is a telling commentary on the 

unsoundness of FIPUG’s proposal. 

Another perplexing limitation on the recognition of incremental costs 

associated with purchased power is found in the next phrase in FIPUG’s 

proposed modification. Instead of simply crediting the fuel clause with the 

incremental cost of a sale as Item 1 provides, FIPUG’s language states 
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1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

Q. 

A. 

that “when the incremental cost of replacement purchased power is more 

than the applicable fuel cost factor, the clause . . . shall be credited with 

the price difference.” By this language, FIPUG apparently seeks to create 

a new, two-step approach to the recognition of incremental costs 

associated with purchased power. To begin with, the incremental cost 

must exceed a threshold (“the applicable fuel cost factor”) before it can be 

considered at all; then, if the incremental cost satisfies the first step, only 

the differential above the threshold can be recognized in the fuel clause. 

I have no idea how this bizarre exercise relates to the proper calculation 

of the gain on a non-separated sale. Moreover, even if the use of a 

threshold was somehow considered to be appropriate, I am at a loss to 

understand FIPUG’s selection of fuel cost factors, which are based on 

average costs, as the yardstick for judging the proper level of incremental 

costs to be included in the fuel clause. 

For all of these reasons, FIPUG’s incredible proposal should be 

summarily rejected. 

Earlier in your testimony you indicated that it was inappropriate for 

FIPUG to include incremental cost credits for buy-through customers 

in it’s proposed modification of Item 1. Why is that? 

Item 1 concerns the treatment of incremental costs in calculating the gain 

on non-separated wholesale sales. As such, it has nothing to do with buy- 

through purchases made on behalf of interruptible customers because 

these purchases cannot represent the incremental cost of a non-separated 

wholesale sale. 
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Unlike other system purchases, buy-through purchases are made for 

the benefit of a specific class of retail customers, with the associated costs 

recovered from this customer class only. A buy-through purchase that is 

made solely to serve specific retail customers obviously cannot also be 

used to provide the energy for a sale to a wholesale customer. Likewise, 

the cost of such a purchase cannot possibly represent the incremental 

cost of the sale. Stated from a computational perspective in the fuel 

clause, it would amount to double counting if the cost of a buy-through 

purchase that is already fully recoverable from buy-through customers was 

also netted against the revenue from a non-separated sale to determine 

the gain credited to all customers. 

FIPUG’s interest in attempting to minimizing its members’ buy-through 

costs is well understood, but its current attempt to inveigle this extraneous 

issue into a basically straight forward gain-on-sale calculation is clearly 

inappropriate and should be rejected. 

Does this conclude your direct testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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3Y MR. McGEE: 

Mr. Portuondo, would you give us a summary o f  your Q 
testimony, please? 

A Yes, s i r  . Commissioners, F1 or ida Power d i  sagrees 

d i t h  FIPUG's proposed language change t o  P a r t  3, Item 1 o f  the 

Commission's order s ta t i ng  t h a t  each I O U  shal l  c r e d i t  i t s  fue l  

and purchased power cost-recovery clause f o r  an amount equal t o  

the incremental fue l  o f  generating the energy f o r  each such 

sale. FIPUG's attempt t o  c l a r i f y  the order issued by t h i s  

Commission j u s t  serves t o  confuse the matter f u r the r .  

I have suggested language t h a t  I bel ieve w i l l  dea 

with FIPUG's concern, but  more succ inct ly .  I also disagree 

with FIPUG's language change which attempts t o  minimize the 

costs o f  buy-though purchased power f o r  i t s  members through the 

fuel  adjustment clause. The costs pa id f o r  buy-through 

purchased power has no bearing on the  ca lcu la t ion  o f  gains f o r  

nonseparated sales since these costs are f u l l y  recoverable from 

the spec i f i c  c lass o f  r e t a i l  customers. 

This concludes my summary. 

MR. McGEE: We tender M r .  Portuondo f o r  cross 

exami nation. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Mr . Beasley, cross. 

MR. BEASLEY: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Kaufman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 
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BY MS. KAUFMAN: 

Q Good morning, Mr. Portuondo. How a re  you? 

A Good. 

Q I n  reviewing your testimony and hearing your summary 

j u s t  now, I th ink  i t  might be the  case t h a t  FIPUG and F lo r ida  

Power Corporation are not r e a l l y  t h a t  f a r  apart i n  regard t o  

t h e i r  pos i t i on  on the  - -  we w i l l  c a l l  i t  the simultaneous 

purchase and sale question. And l e t  me be sure I understand 

a f t e r  look ing a t  F lo r ida  Power Corporation's prehearing 

statement - -  do you have t h a t  i n  f r o n t  o f  you? 

A I t h ink  I do. Yes, I do. 

Q Your basic pos i t ion ,  t he  l a s t  sentence there,  i t  

seems t o  me t h a t  you agree w i t h  FIPUG t h a t  i f  the  cost o f  a 

purchase i s  higher than the  cost o f  generation dur ing t h i s  

simultaneous purchase and sale s i t ua t i on ,  t h a t  t h a t  purchase, 

higher purchase p r i ce  ought t o  be what i s  used i n  ca l cu la t i ng  

the cost o f  the  t ransact ion,  correct? 

A 

Q 

I f  t h a t  purchase i s  on the  increment, yes. 

And I th ink  you make a s im i la r  statement i n  your 

pos i t i on  on Issue 2, correct? About i n  the middle o f  the  

paragraph. 

A 

increment . 
Yes, as long as t h a t  purchased power i s  on the  

Q Okay. L e t ' s  j u s t  t r y  and walk through a quick 

example and be sure t h a t  we are on the  same page. I f  Power 
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:orp is making a 100-megawatt nonseparated sale and there is an 
)utage, an unexpected outage on the system, let's say, and then 
you have to purchase 100 megawatts to cover the sale, you would 
agree that you would use that purchased cost in the calculation 
Df the cost of the sale? 

A A separate purchase for the purpose of making this - -  
that would be on the increment, yes, an independent purchase. 

Q And I just want to be clear that I think that is 
FIPUG's vision as well, and maybe our disagreement is over the 
language or  how it is stated. 

I want to ask you just a question or two about the 
issue that relates to the O&M costs, and I think staff 
distributed what has now been marked as Exhibit Number 2. Do 

you have that? 
A No, I did not get a copy. (Pause.) 

What page are you - -  
Well, actually now I have to be sure that this Q 

corresponds. 
4 at the bottom, are you with me? 

It is page - - in the package it is stamped number 

A Yes. 
Q Okay. And staff in that question asked you to 

provide the amount of O&M expense that you incurred to sell 
nonseparated energy that was recorded as part o f  your operating 
expenses from 1998 to 2000. And you responded, or Power Corp 
responded that you do not track operation and maintenance 
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3xpenses i ncurred i n  making nonseparated who1 esal e sal es , 

correct? 

A We do not d i r e c t l y  t rack  those incremental operating 

3&M costs, yes. 

Q And i s  t ha t  s t i l l  the  case today, t h a t  you do not 

t rack those costs? 

A 

Q Okay. Does Power Corp have a methodology by which 

We do not t rack  those costs. 

they determine what the incremental O&M costs are f o r  these 

sales? 

A Yes. We have a formula tha t  takes i n t o  

consideration the var iab le costs o f  the power p lan ts  over a 

per iod o f  t ime based on t h e i r  output, and t h a t  formu a i s  

appl ied t o  the sales p r i ce  i n  order t o  recover a proxy f o r  the  

var iab le O&M assumed t o  be incurred i n  base ra tes  when a 

nonseparated sale takes place. That revenue i s  co l lec ted  from 

the wholesale customer, and the  revenue i s  appl ied t o  base 

rates t o  o f f s e t  any o f  the var iab le  O&M t h a t  would na tu ra l l y  be 

booked i n  base rates when the  maintenance does take place, the  

addi t ional  mai  ntenance. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do you do any k ind  o f  t rue-up 

process on tha t?  

THE WITNESS: No, s i r ,  because i t  i s  co l lec ted  from 

the wholesale customer a t  the  t ime o f  the  sa le as pa r t  o f  the  

sales p r i ce  o f  the product. 
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BY MS. KAUFMAN: 

Q I s  i t  subtracted or deducted from the  gain 

ca lcu lat ion,  or  how i s  i t  considered when you ca lcu la te  the  

gain? 

A It i s  removed from both sides o f  t he  equation. It i s  

not included i n  the  incremental cost ,  nor i s  i t  included i n  the 

revenues received. So the  net r e s u l t  i s  the  same gain. 

Q Okay. Do you know or  have you looked a t  the way the  

other u t i l i t i e s  make t h a t  O&M ca lcu lat ion? 

A No, I haven't.  

Q So you do no t  know, do you, i f  a l l  the  u t i l i t i e s  are 

doing i t  the way t h a t  Power Corp i s  doing it? 

A No, I don ' t .  

MS. KAUFMAN: That 's  a l l  I have. Thank you. 

CROSS EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Mr. Portuondo, I would l i k e  t o  pursue t h a t ,  i f  I 

could, t o  make sure I understand. Do you make market-based 

pr iced  sal es? 

A 

Q 

Not w i t h i n  the  State o f  F lo r ida .  

Do you make any o u t - o f - s t a t e  sales t h a t  are 

nonseparated? 

A Yes. 

Q That are market-based pr iced? 

A Out o f  s t a t e  we have market based au thor i ty ,  yes. 
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Q Okay. And so I want t o  use t h a t  example o f  a 

market-based p r i c e  t o  see i f  I understand how t h i s  would work. 

L e t ' s  suppose you s e l l  - - make a sale a t  30, t h a t  i s  based on 

market pr ice.  This i s  f o r  a nonseparated sale. And l e t ' s  say 

the incremental fue l  i s  20, and your - - would you have an 

estimated O&M associated w i th  t h i s ?  

A Yes. On the sale, yes. 

Q So l e t ' s  say the estimated O&M, incremental O&M i s  5, 

okay. As I understand i t , then, you would say the  p r i c e  i s  30, 

but  b u i l t  i n t o  t h a t  p r i c e  i s  5 f o r  t he  O&M? 
A Yes. 

Q And then you would subtract  - - so t h a t  you would 

s t a r t  w i t h  an actual p r i c e  o f  25, and subtract  t he  $20 fue l ,  

correct? 

A You would subtract  the  $20 fue l?  This i s  f o r  the  

determination o f  the  gain? 

Q Yes, s i r .  I ' m  sorry,  f o r  purposes o f  ca lcu la t ing  the  

gain.  

A Yes. You would be comparing a revenue stream o f  25 

t o  an incremental cost. 

be a margin o f  5 on t h a t  p a r t i c u l a r  scenario. 

I f  i t  happened t o  be the  $20, i t  would 

Q So i n  t h i s  example where the  sales p r i c e  i s  30, 

incremental O&M i s  5, incremental f ue l  i s  20, you would g ive  a 

$5 c r e d i t  f o r  the  gain through the  fue l  adjustment clause, i s  

that  correct? 
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A Correct. 

Q Now, would t h a t  $5 incremental O&M a l s o  show up i n  

calculation of base rates? 
A The revenue, the $5 i n  revenue? 

Q Would the $5 t h a t  Florida Power Corporation has 
incurred be removed from the calculation of base rates? I'm 

trying t o  understand whether you make an adjustment i n  base 
rates for the removal of this incremental O&M expense t h a t  i s  
est i mated. 

A No, the expense will be incurred i n  base rates. What 
we are attempting t o  do is mitigate t h a t  expense t o  the 
customer by collecting the $5 from the wholesale customer on 
those nonseparated sales. So the revenue would be applied t o  
other operating revenues as an offset for the eventual O&M t h a t  
would be incurred. 

Q B u t  i n  this case i f  the price for the sale i s  
market-based, i t  is  simply the best price you could get and you 

t h a t  price. 
we bel ieve the O&M 

e and have collected a 
'fset t h a t  cost i n  base 

have simply imputed this O&M figure i n t o  
A Right .  I have calculated w h a t  

costs are associated w i t h  making t h a t  sa 
from the wholesale customer t o  o revenue 

rates. 
Q 

particu 
Now, doesn't this give you a collection - -  for these 

ar sales, doesn't this give you a collection for t h a t  
incremental O&M both i n  base rates and i n  the fuel adjustment 
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c a l  cu l  a t i  on? 

A No. The expense i s  not i n  the  fue l  adjustment 

ca lcu la t ion .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: What i s  i t  then t h a t  you bel ieve 

goes through the fue l  adjustment clause? 

THE WITNESS: The fue l  adjustment clause, as I 

understood the example, would be the  $20 i n  f u e l .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I f  I understood M r  . Burgess ' 

question, he was asking you about the  incremental O&M expense, 

the $5. Was i t  $5, Mr. Burgess? 

MR. BURGESS: Yes, t h a t  i s  correct .  

COMMISSIONER JABER: Now, you responded t h a t  t h a t  $5 

i s  recovered through the clause. That was your response. 

THE WITNESS: Maybe I misspoke. The $5 i s  recovered 

from the  wholesale customer but  i s  appl ied t o  other operating 

revenues. It i s  not  passed through the  clause as a revenue. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Okay. We1 1, w i t h  t h a t  

c l a r i f i c a t i o n ,  i f  i t  i s  recovered from the  wholesale customer, 

dhy i s  i t  also included i n  base rates? 

THE WITNESS: The revenue i s  given back t o  the  

customers i n  base rates.  

COMMISSIONER JABER: The revenue, but  you have not 

included expenses i n  base ra tes  f o r  recovery. 

THE WITNESS: The expenses would - - when maintenance 

i s  performed on the u n i t  because i t  runs longer because i t  had 
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t o  make t h a t  nonseparated wholesale sale, the expense i t s e l f  

would be booked i n t o  the normal O&M accounts w i t h i n  base rates.  

So what t h i s  serves t o  do i s  t o  o f f s e t  those costs so the 

customer, the r e t a i l  customer i s  not having t o  incur  those 

costs. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: So the  essence o f  t h a t  i s  those O&M 

expenses t h a t  support the wholesale sales are never separated 

out o f  r e t a i l  rates? 

THE WITNESS: I ' m  sorry,  could you repeat tha t?  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: The O&M expenses t h a t  support those 

wholesale transactions are never r e a l l y  separated out o f  r e t a i l  

rates.  

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And t o  deal w i t h  t h a t  you t r y  and 

give the  r e t a i l  ratepayers the  revenue bene f i t  o f  those - -  some 

revenue bene f i t  from those wholesale t ransact ions.  

THE WITNESS: Correct. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q So i f  I understand what you are saying i s  you take 

the - -  out  o f  the $30 t h a t  was j u s t  the best deal you could get 

on the  market, you would recognize $5 - -  you would recognize $5 

o f  revenue i n  base rates? 

A Yes. 

Q 

rates, and then you would remove them both from the ca l cu la t i on  

Okay. And you would also have the  $5 o f  O&M i n  base 
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if the  gain f o r  the purpose o f  what passes through the  fuel  

:1 ause? 

A Correct. 

Q Thank you. Now, a re  there any circumstances under 

vhich F lo r ida  Power Corp f i nds  i t s e l f  s e l l i n g  of f -system a t  a 

lower p r i ce  than i t  i s  purchasing on-system, s e l l i n g  a 

t ime t h a t  i t  i s  

r e t a i l  load, firm 

ionseparated sale of f -system a t  the  same 

iurchasing power f o r  the system, f o r  the 

n e t a i l  load? 

A 

Q 
That possi b i  1 i t y  could e x i s t ,  

And i n  t h a t  case what you have 

res. 

sa id  i s  t h a t  the 

incremental cost would be the  cost o f  the  purchased power? 

A It depends on the  purchase. I f  the  purchase was 

w te red  i n t o  f o r  the purposes o f  making the  sale,  then i t  would 

)e the  increment. 

nondispatchable, t h a t  there i s  no incremental cost .  I t ' s  pa r t  

D f  the  average cost. But i n  the  scenario t h a t  was given 

I f  i t  i s  a f i r m  purchase must take 

t o  

n the 

ea r l i e r ,  i f  a u n i t  goes down and I enter i n t o  a purchase 

cover a sale, t h a t  i s  the  increment, t h a t  i s  t he  change 

system. 

Q So you are saying i f  you make a purchase f o r  some 

fu tu re  per iod o f  t ime, and t h a t  i s  on some k ind  o f  firm 

contract ,  t ha t  t ime a r r i ves  and your producing a t  an amount 

tha t  i s  below tha t ,  and you are producing a - - you have a 

margin tha t  you are look ing t o  t o  s e l l ,  t h a t  under those 
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circumstances you would not consider the  higher p r iced  purchase 

as your incremental cost, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A I f  the purchase i s  not on the increment, then i t  

would not  be the cost associated w i t h  making t h a t  sale. 

Q And I guess my problem i s  the  d e f i n i t i o n  o f  the 

increment looks t o  me l i k e  i t  i s  no t  necessar i ly  being seen the  

same way by everybody. So how would you def ine what decides 

whether i t  i s  the increment o r  not  the  increment? 

A It i s  the source o f  the next megawatt t o  meet t h a t  

sale. So i f  I dispatched a peaker t o  meet t h a t  sale, then the  

incremental cost i s  the  cost o f  d ispatching t h a t  peaker. I f  I 

dispatch, i f  I have a dispatchable purchased power agreement 

t h a t  I ' m  not  f u l l y  committed t o ,  suppose i t ' s  50 megawatts 

dispatchable, firm o r  nonfirm, and I am on ly  using 25 megawatts 

because t h a t  i s  a l l  I need t o  meet my demand a t  t h a t  po in t  i n  

time. But I see an opportuni ty since I already have the 

contract  as p a r t  o f  my source i n  the  p o r t f o l i o ,  I see an 

opportuni ty t o  produce a margin o r  a gain f o r  t he  r e t a i l  

customer by dispatching the other 25, t h a t  i s  the  increment. 

Q So i t  i s  b a s i c a l l y  i f  you fee l  l i k e  the  company made 

a prudent decis ion t o  make a purchase f o r  some f u  ure period, 

and i t  turns out t h a t  the  circumstances are no t  what was 

ant ic ipated a t  the  t ime o f  the  purchase, you would not 

necessari ly use t h a t  purchased p r i c e  as the  increment, i s  t h a t  

r i g h t ?  
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A I ' v e  got t o  make sure I understand your question. 

When the  decision was made t o  make the  purchase, the purchase 

was a t  a lower cost than the  decremental cost o f  running a 

u n i t ,  so i t  was entered i n t o  i n  the  best i n t e r e s t  o f  the 

customer. I f  i t  was entered i n t o  on the assumption t h a t  100 

percent o f  t h a t  was needed and i t  was firm nondispatchable, 

again t h a t  t h a t  would be the f i r s t  t h i n g  t h a t  i s  dispatched out 

o f  the system, so i t  would never be the  increment. It would be 

whatever next u n i t  t o  come out o f  t he  stack t o  meet any sales. 

Hopeful ly I answered the  question. 

Q So the determination o f  what a c t u a l l y  i s  the 

increment f o r  purposes o f  applying i t  here incorporates the  

issue o f  whether the  company's purchases were prudent when they 

were entered - -  when the  agreement was entered i n t o ?  

A There i s  a separate schedule i n  compliance w i t h  the  

Commi ss i  on ' s r e p o r t i  ng requi  rements t h a t  shows the  savi ngs on 

purchased power. So, I mean - - 

Q The savings as i t  a c t u a l l y  comes about o r  the savings 

as i t  would have been had the  circumstances t h a t  were 

ant ic ipated a t  the t ime o f  the  purchase transpired? 

A The actual .  You enter i n t o  the  purchase based on 

some assumptions, you f i l e  your compliance schedules based on 

actual resu l ts .  

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, M r .  Portuondo. 

THE WITNESS: You're welcome. 

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

47 

MR. BURGESS: That 's a l l  I have. 

MR. KEATING: I have j u s t  a few questions. 

CROSS EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q M r .  Portuondo, when F lo r ida  Power economically 

dispatches i t s  resources t o  serve i t s  load, does i t  d is t ingu ish  

between resources from i t s  own generation and resources 

purchased from other generation sources? 

A No. 

Q During F lor ida Power's l a s t  r a t e  case, how d i d  the 

Lommi ssion adjust  i t s  revenue requirement t o  account f o r  O&M 

expenses associated w i t h  nonseparated who1 esal e energy sal es? 

I ' m  not  aware t h a t  there was an adjustment, so i f  you A 

can en1 ighten me. 

Q I t h i n k  I w i l l  move on from t h a t  one f o r  now i f  you 

don't  know the answer. I won't t r y  t o  beat something out o f  

you t h a t ' s  not  i n  you. 

I f  the Commission orders each u t i l i t y  t o  c r e d i t  - -  
COMMISSIONER JABER: S t a f f ,  do you have an order from 

the l a s t  r a t e  case t h a t  might show whether an adjustment was 

nad ? 

MR. KEATING: I do not  have an order a t  t h i s  time. 

3Y MR. KEATING: 

Q I f  the Commission orders each u t i l i t y  t o  c r e d i t  

3perating revenues w i t h  an amount equal t o  the O&M expenses o f  
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a nonseparated wholesale energy sale, would t h a t  order create a 

double recovery o f  those O&M expenses? 

A No, I don ' t  bel ieve they would. 

Q Could you explain why? 

A The customer i s  receiv ing the  c r e d i t  such t h a t  i f  

there i s  an overearning s i t u a t i o n  i t  u l t i m a t e l y  wou d go back 

t o  the  customer. It i s ,  I guess, d i f f i c u l t  t o  determine how 

much var iab le  O&M associated wi th  nonseparated sales may have 

been assumed t o  be i n  the l a s t  r a t e  proceeding, therefore,  i t  

only benef i t s  the customer f o r  the  companies t o  t ry  and o f f s e t  

any addi t ional  costs t h a t  i t  could f a i r l y  ca lcu la te  could be 

occurred i n  today's environment f o r  addi t ional  var iab le  O&M. 

Q Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Do you have other questions? 

MR. KEATING: I ' m  sorry,  I have j u s t  a couple more 

questions. 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Are the gains and losses on nonseparated wholesale 

sales aggregated f o r  purposes o f  repo r t i ng  on F1 or ida  Power ' s 

month1 y A Schedul es? 

A Yes. 

Q And do the sum o f  t he  gains and 

gain t h a t  the incent ive would apply t o ?  

A Yes. 

osses equal the  net  

MR. KEATING: Thank you. That ' s  a l l  the  questions I 
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have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I want t o  make sure I understand, 

i n  your testimony and i n  your pos i t i on  t o  Issue 2, i t  sounds 

l i k e  you agree w i th  the idea tha t  incremental cost  o f  - -  
incremental costs o f  purchases, your purchases when you have 

done a nonseparated sale can be dea l t  w i th  i n  the  context o f  

t h i s  gain on sale provis ion.  Do I take t h a t  from your 

t e s t  i mony? 

THE WITNESS: I bel ieve so. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And you propose a modi f icat ion.  I 

assume t h a t  your proposed modi f icat ion d i d n ’ t  reach a 

s t i p u l a t i o n  w i th  FIPUG. But you do recognize t h a t  idea and 

would propose your language t o  deal w i th  tha t?  

THE WITNESS: Yes, purchased power can be on the 

increment . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commissioners, questions? 

Redirect . 
MR. McGEE: Just  one question. 

RED1 RECT EXAM I NATION 

BY MR. McGEE: 

Q Mr. Portuondo, you were asked some qu by both 

Ms. Kaufman and Mr. Burgess concerning the  s i t u a t i o n  tha t  would 

e x i s t  i f  the  company was making a nonseparated wholesale sale 

and also purchasing power on the  wholesale market. And there 

were several questions asked o f  you concerning the  cost o f  the 

t i o n  
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purchase and whether t h a t  would be used i n  considering the gain 

on the  sale. And I wanted t o  ask you i f  there was a 

d i s t i n c t i o n  when we are t a l k i n g  about the  costs o f  those kinds 

o f  purchases between the average cost o f  t he  purchase and the 

incremental cost o f  the purchase, are those two th ings 

necessar i ly  the same? 

A No, they are not.  

Q And can you give me an example o f  where you would 

have an average cost o f  a purchase t h a t  might be d i f f e r e n t  than 

the  incremental cost o f  t h a t  purchase? 

A I bel ieve i n  the example I gave where i t ' s  a 

nondi spatchabl e must take purchased power agreement, i t  woul d 

be an average cost o f  your system fue l ,  bu t  i t  would not be - - 
i t  would have a zero incremental cost because i t  would be f u l l y  

d i  spatched. 

Q And so when you responded t o  the  s t a f f  question i n  

the a f f i rma t i ve  t h a t  F lo r ida  Power t r e a t s  a l l  o f  i t s  generating 

resources, both company-owned and purchases the  same when 

dispatching i t s  system, by saying you are r e f e r r i n g  t o  making 

those dispatch decisions based on the incremental cost o f  a l l  

o f  those resources? 

A Yes. 

MR. McGEE: Thank you. That ' s  a l l  I have. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: And we had on ly  s t a f f ' s  exh ib i t ,  

so, thank you, Mr. Portuondo, you are excused. 
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Mr. Childs, your witness. 

MR. CHILDS: Commissioners, a t  t h i s  t ime before I 

:a l l  Ms. Dubin, I would l i k e  t o  address the i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  o f  

the s t a f f  memorandum. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1. 

MR. CHILDS: That re la tes  t o  Issue 4 and the 

implementation o f  the  Commission's decision on of f -system sales 

Dther than the p a r t  t h a t  was PAA. And we had a discussion 

about t h i s  a t  the prehearing conference, and my understanding 

i s  t h a t  FIPUG s t i l l  i s  not  i n  agreement as t o  the  au then t i c i t y  

D f  the September 20, 2000 memorandum from s t a f f .  And so I 

Manted t o  pursue g e t t i n g  t h a t  i d e n t i f i e d  and authenticated. 

4nd I ' m  going t o  t e l l  you my basis f o r  it, and then c i r c u l a t e  

the documents. That may be a b i t  awkward f o r  you, but  I simply 

am t r y i n g  t o  read a t  the same time t h a t  I am handling the 

documents. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No problem. 

MR. CHILDS: What I have i s  - -  and I w i l l  d i s t r i b u t e  

these. I have a copy o f  a September 20, 2000, memorandum from 

the s t a f f  bearing the  name and t h e i r  o f f  c ia1 capacity and the 

i n i t i a l s  o f  Messrs Cochran Keating and Todd Bohrmann. And I 

d i l l  maintain t h a t  those documents are admissible, or  

authenticated under the evidence code Section 90.902, 

Subsection 2, which says t h a t  e x t r i n s i c  evidence o f  

authent ic i ty  as a condi t ion precedent t o  a d m i s s i b i l i t y  i s  not  
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requi red f o r  a document t h a t  does not bear a seal but  purports 

t o  bear the signature o f  an o f f i c e r  or  employee o f  any e n t i t y  

l i s t e d  i n  Subsection A, which includes an agency o f  t h i s  s ta te,  

a f f i x e d  i n  the employee's o f f i c i a l l y  capacity. And I would 

submit t h i s  document complies w i t h  t h a t .  

This document, i n  addi t ion,  has been d i s t r i b u t e d  a t  

the t ime o f  i t s  preparation as i t  was d i s t r i b u t e d  as a r e s u l t ,  

and as the document r e f l e c t s  i t  was d i s t r i b u t e d  as a r e s u l t  o f  

a meeting w i t h  a l l  par t ies  i n  the docket t o  discuss how best t o  

implement. And t h a t  meeting was held, as I r e c a l l ,  a t  the 

i ns t ruc t i ons  o f  the Commission t o  f a c i l i t a t e  implementation and 

the s t a f f  was good enough t o  put together t h i s  memorandum as a 

proposal f o r  everyone t o  know about and respond t o .  

The second ground t h a t  I have i s  t h a t  when we were 

previously going t o  address t h i s  issue o f  implementation the 

s t a f f  memorandum was i d e n t i f i e d  and was attached t o  the 

preheari ng order o f  t h i s  Commission i n  Docket Number 000001 - E 1  , 

and the prehearing order was dated November 15, 2000. And the  

same memorandum was attached as an Appendix A ,  o r  excuse me 

Attachment A. And what I have done i s  I have obtained a copy, 

a c e r t i f i e d  copy w i t h  the ra ised seal o f  the  Commission from 

the C lerk 's  Of f i ce ,  w i t h  an a t t e s t a t i o n  from the  Bureau o f  

Records and Hearing Services. 

the court repor ter  and d i s t r i b u t e  the  copies. 

I would propose t o  give t h a t  t o  

I maintain t h a t  under the  F lo r i da  Evidence Code t h a t  
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t h i s  document, which i s  included as pa r t  o f  t he  prehearing 

order which was f o r  the purpose o f  doing what we are now doing 

as t o  implementing the order, i s  authentic under the evidence 

code, F lo r ida  Statute Section 90.902, Subsection ( l ) ( a ) ,  where 

i t  provides t h a t  e x t r i n s i c  evidence as a condi t ion precedent 

f o r  admiss ib i l i t y  i s  not required f o r  a document bearing a seal 

purport ing t o  be tha t  o f  any s ta te  o r  agency. This i s  an 

agency o f  the s ta te  and the  seal i s  a f f i xed .  I also maintain 

tha t  i t  i s  admi s s i  b l  e under F1 or ida  Evidence Code 90.902, 

Subsection (41, because i t  i s  a copy o f  an o f f i c i a l  pub1 i c  

record, repor t ,  o r  en t ry  o f  a document authorized by l a w  t o  be 

recorded or  f i l e d  and ac tua l l y  recorded or  f i l e d  i n  a pub l i c  

o f f i ce ,  e t  cetera. And t h a t  i s  what the order i s ,  and t h a t  i s  

dhere i t  i s  kept, and t h a t  i s  t he  e f f e c t  o f  t he  seal. And a t  

t h i s  t ime I w i l l  d i s t r i b u t e  those, but  the o r i g i n a l  I am g i v ing  

t o  the cour t  repor ter  w i th  the  ra ised seal. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Kaufman, do you want t o  make 

your statements now or  a t  the  t ime we have t h i s  f o r  admission? 

MS. KAUFMAN: I would be glad t o  do i t  now since you 

j u s t  heard Mr. Chi lds '  argument. And I appreciate Mr. Chi lds '  

remarks about the  au then t i c i t y  o f  t he  document. That has never 

been an issue. We don ' t  suggest t o  you t h a t  t h i s  i s  not ,  you 

know, what i t  purports t o  be, a memorandum prepared by your 

s t a f f .  So we don ' t  take issue w i t h  the au then t i c i t y  o f  i t . 

dhat we do take issue w i th  i s  the  p ro f fe r  o f  t h i s  document, I 
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am assuming f o r  the substance o f  what i t  contains, which i s  a 

suggested methodology t o  implement the order which you a re  

r i g h t  now considering whether o r  not what i s  i n  your PAA order 

and i t s  implementation i s  appropriate o r  not.  

I f  your s t a f f  thought t h a t  t h i s  was an appropriate 

e x h i b i t  f o r  your consideration, I bel ieve they needed t o  have a 

witness t o  sponsor it. They needed t o  have somebody stand f o r  

cross examination. We have heard some discussion already, I 

bel ieve Mr. Burgess mentioned t h i s  about the f a c t  t h a t  on the  

l a s t  page we are t a l k i n g  about est imat ing gains. A l l  o f  these 

are matters t h a t  are before you now. And I don ' t  t h i n k  t h a t  

t h i s  document can be o f fe red  as any s o r t  o f  evidence i n  regard 

t o  how you need t o  implement the  decis ion t h a t  comes out  o f  

t h i s  case. 

As I said, t h a t  would have been appropriate i f  there 

had been a witness t o  sponsor it, t o  cross-examine t h a t  witness 

on the issues t h a t  are ra ised  i n  t h i s  memorandum. So i t ' s  not 

an issue of au then t i c i t y  o f  the  document. 

f o r  which the  document i s  o f fered,  and i t  i s  inappropr iate 

d i  thout  a witness. 

It goes t o  the  t r u t h  

MR. CHILDS: I ' m  sorry,  I d o n ' t  need t o  pursue tha t ,  

although I d i d  ask as t o  whether we could obta in  a s t i p u l a t i o n  

as t o  au thent ic i t y ,  and I t h i n k  I was t o l d  no, bu t  we w i l l  move 

on. I would ask t h a t  i t  be marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n  and then 

I wish t o  address the  comments about the  a d m i s s i b i l i t y  o f  it. 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very w e l l .  

MR. CHILDS: I haven't moved t h a t  ye t ,  but  I w i l l .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  do t h a t  a t  the  t ime you 

nove i t . The memorandum i s  separate from the  prehearing order. 

MR. CHILDS: Okay. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I ' m  sorry.  

MR. CHILDS: I ' m  sorry,  I spoke before you f in ished.  

-lad you i d e n t i f i e d  the  - -  
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: No, we w i l l  mark the  September 20, 

2000 memorandum from FPSC s t a f f  t o  the pa r t i es  as Exh ib i t  3. 

COMMISSIONER JABER: I t ' s  from whom, M r .  Chairman? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Commission s t a f f  t o  the  pa r t i es  o f  

necord i n  t h i s  docket, i n  the  01 docket, I ' m  sorry.  

MR. CHILDS: Okay. Then I w i l l  c a l l  my witness, Ms. 

)ubi n. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Did you want t o  mark the prehearing 

r d e r ,  as we l l?  

MR. CHILDS: I do. I would mark t h a t ,  as we l l .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  mark t h a t  as Exh ib i t  4. 

MR. CHILDS: Okay. 

(Exhib i ts  3 and 4 marked f o r  

K. M. DUBIN 

vas ca l l ed  as a witness on behal f  o f  F 

md, having been du ly  sworn, t e s t i f i e d  

i dent i  f i cat ion.  ) 

o r ida  Power and L igh t ,  

as fo l lows:  

DIRECT EXAM I NATION 
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BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, have you been previously sworn? 

A Yes. 

Q 

A 

Would you s ta te  your name and address please? 

My name i s  Korel Dubin, my business address i s  9250 

West F1 agl er  St reet ,  M i a m i ,  F1 or ida 33174. 

Q 

A 

By whom are you employed and i n  what 

I am employed by F lo r ida  Power and L 

Manager o f  Regulatory Issues i n  the Regulatory 

Department. 

capacity? 

gh t  Company as 

A f f a i r s  

Q You have before you a document e n t i t l e d  before the 

F lo r i da  Pub1 i c  Service Commission, F lo r i da  Power and L igh t  

Company, testimony o f  Korel M. Dubin, Docket Number 010283-EI? 

A Yes, I do. 

Q 

proceeding? 

Was t h a t  prepared by you as your test imony f o r  t h i s  

A Yes, i t  was. 

MR. CHILDS: M r .  Chairman, I would a lso  note t h a t  

attached t o  t h i s  testimony o f  Ms. Dubin i s  a copy o f  Order 

Number 001744 as Appendix A, and I would l i k e  t h a t  t h a t  be 

marked as we l l ,  please, o r  i d e n t i f i e d ?  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: This i s  the  appendix t o  the order? 

MR. CHILDS: It i s  an appendix t o  her testimony, so 

i t  i s  something separate. 

incent ive proposal. And I t h i n k  t h a t  would be E x h i b i t  5. 

It i s  an order adopting the  
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Show t h a t  marked as Exh ib i t  5.  

(Exh ib i t  5 marked f o r  i d e n t i f i c a t i o n . )  

3Y MR. CHILDS: 
Q Do you have any changes o r  correct ions t o  make t o  

your t e s t  i mony? 

A No, I do not.  

Q 

A Yes, I do. 

Q 

A Yes. 

Q 

Do you adopt i t  as your testimony? 

Would you t u r n  t o  Page 7 o f  your testimony? 

And i n  t h a t  discussion would you agree t h a t  i n  your 

mswer t o  the question beginning a t  L ine 3 t h a t  you i d e n t i f y  

the s t a f f  memorandum dated September 2000 as containing the  

implementation procedures t h a t  you propose be fol lowed i n  t h i s  

locket? 

A Yes. 

Q And i s  the  memorandum t h a t  you re fe r red  t o  i n  your 

testimony the same as the memorandums t h a t  have been i d e n t i f i e d  

now as Exh ib i ts  3 and 4? 

A Yes. 

MR. CHILDS: I would ask t h a t  the  prepared testimony 

o f  Ms. Dubin be inser ted  i n t o  the record. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without ob ject ion,  show the 

p r e f i l e d  testimony o f  Ms. Dubin i s  entered i n t o  the record as 

though read. 
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BEFORE THE FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 

FLORIDA POWER & LIGHT COMPANY 

TESTIMONY OF KOREL M. DUBIN 

DOCKET NO. 01 0283-El 

April 23,2001 

Please state your name, business address, employer and position. 

My name is Korel M. Dubin, and my business address is 9250 West Flagler 

Street, Miami, Florida, 33174. I am employed by Florida Power & Light 

Company (FPL) as the Manager of Regulatory Issues in the Regulatory 

Affairs Department. 

Please state your education and business experience? 

I received a Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from Emory University in 

1980 and in 1982 I received a Master of Business Administration from Barry 

University. In June 1982, I joined Florida Power and Light Company’s Fossil 

Fuel Section of the Fuel Resources Department. From 1982 through 1985 

my responsibilities included administration of fuel supply and operations 

contracts, development of procurement procedures, research/analysis of 

transportation options and by-product sales, and support for regulatory filings. 

In December of 1985 I joined the Rates and Research Department as a Rate 

Analyst. Since 1985, I have held various positions of increasing responsibility 

in the Rates and Research Department and the Regulatory Affairs 

Department and my primary responsibilities have been in the area of the 
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adjustment clause filings. In June 2000 I became Manager of Regulatory 

Issues in the Regulatory Affairs Department where I am primarily responsible 

for the coordination, development, and preparation of the Company’s Fuel, 

Capacity and Environmental Cost Recovery filings. I am a company witness 

in the clause dockets and I have also testified in Docket No. 991779-El 

entitled Review of the Appropriate Application of Incentives to Wholesale 

Power Sales by Investor Owned Utilities. 

Q. 

A. The purpose of my testimony is to address the reasonableness and 

justification for the actions taken by the Commission in Part Ill of Order No. 

PSC-00-1744-PAA-El in the Incentive Docket No. 991 779-El. (Order No. 

PSC-00-1744-PAA-El is attached as Appendix A to my testimony). My 

testimony also addresses how the Commission’s decision in Docket No. 

991 779-El concerning the application of incentives to wholesale power sales 

should be implemented. 

What is the purpose of your testimony in this proceeding? 

Q. What action was taken by the Commission in Part 111 of Order No. PSC- 

00-1 744-PAA-EI? 

A. In Part Ill of Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El the Commission provided the 

method for calculating gains on non-separated wholesale power sales and the 

accounting treatment for revenues and expenses associated with non- 

separated wholesale power sales. Part Ill of the Order was issued as a 

Proposed Agency Action and as such was the only portion of the Order that 
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could be protested. The Florida Industrial Power Users Group (FIPUG) and 

Gulf Power Company have protested Part Ill of the Order. 

Q. What other actions were taken by the Commission in Order No. PSC-OO- 

1744-PAA-El and how do these actions compare with what was done 

with shareholder incentives in the past? 

A. In Order No. PSC-OO-1744-PAA-EI, the Commission also addressed the 

appropriateness, structure, and level of shareholder incentives, as well as the 

sales that are eligible for shareholder incentives. These actions are final and 

not subject to protest. 

The actions taken by the Commission in Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El 

represent the evolution of a long-standing Commission practice of promoting 

the efficiency of operation by a utility, the realization and maximization of 

gains on non-separated wholesale power sales, and the sharing of these 

gains with retail customers. In the Order, the Commission reaffirms this long- 

standing practice. However, the Commission also acknowledges that the 

wholesale market in Florida has changed since 984 when the incentive 

mechanism was first established in Order No. 2923 and modified the 

incentive mechanism accordingly. In approving the modified incentive 

mechanism the Commission stated that: 

“we find that the incentive program established in Order No. 12923 

should not be eliminated, but should be modified to provide an 
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appropriate incentive structure that reflects the changes in the wholesale 

market and the electric industry that have occurred since Order No. 

12923 was issued and maximizes the potential benefits to ratepayers 

accordingly.” 

Specifically, what does Part 111 of Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El state 

about the methodology for calculating the gains on non-separated 

wholesale power sales? 

In Part Ill of the Order the Commission states ”Accordingly, we find that each 

IOU shall measure the gain from its non-separated wholesale power sales by 

subtracting the sum of its incremental costs from the revenue received for each 

sale. Further, we find that the calculation of incremental costs for these sales 

shall include, but not be limited to: incremental fuel cost, incremental SO2 

emission allowance cost, incremental O&M cost, and separately-identified 

transmission or capacity charges.” 

Why is this a reasonable and appropriate methodology for calculating 

the gains on non-separated wholesale power sales? 

A gain on a non-separated wholesale power sale transaction occurs when the 

amount collected for the transaction is over and above the cost of the 

transaction. The use of incremental cost, including incremental fuel cost, is the 

proper basis and accepted measurement of cost incurred for the transaction. 

Furthermore, this calculation, where the gain is calculated by subtracting the 

incremental cost incurred for the transaction from the revenues received for 

the transaction, is consistent with the well-established manner in which gains on 
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sales have historically been calculated. 

Specifically, what does Part 111 of Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El state 

about the accounting treatment for the revenue and expenses 

associated with non-separated wholesale power sales? 

The Commission states in Part Ill of the order that: 

“In addition, we find that the following regulatory treatment for the 

revenues and expenses associated with each non-separated wholesale 

power sale is appropriate: 

1. Each IOU shall credit its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 

clause for an amount equal to the incremental fuel cost of 

generating the energy for each such sale; 

Except for FPC, each IOU shall credit its environmental cost 

recovery clause for an amount equal to the incremental SO2 

2. 

emission allowance cost of generating the energy for each such 

sale. FPC, because it does not have an environmental cost 

recovery clause, shall credit this cost to its fuel and purchased 

power cost recovery clause; 

Each IOU shall credit its operating revenues for an amount equal 

to the incremental operating and maintenance (O&M) cost of 

generating the energy for each such sale; and 

3. 

4. In accordance with Order No. PSC-99-2512-FOF-EI, issued 

December 22, 1999, in Docket No. 990001-EI, each IOU shall 

credit its capacity cost recovery clause for an amount equal to any 
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transmission revenues or separately identifiable capacity 

revenues.” 

Why is this regulatory treatment of revenues and expenses associated 

with non-separated wholesale power sales reasonable and appropriate? 

This treatment is reasonable and appropriate in that it is consistent with well 

established practices whereby gains from non-separated wholesale power sales 

transactions have been flowed back to customers through the Fuel Cost 

Recovery Clause. In Part Ill of the Order, the Commission, recognizing that 

there has to be a way to identify, review, and audit these transactions, simply 

provides a way to account for revenue and expenses associated with non- 

separated wholesale sales matching revenue and expenses with recovery 

mechanisms. 

Is your testimony addressing the substance of any protests of Part Ill of 

Order No. PSC-OO-1744-PAA-EI? 

No. As stated previously, FPL believes that the Commission’s actions taken in 

Part I l l  of Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El regarding the method for 

calculating gains on non-separated wholesale power sales and the regulatory 

treatment for revenues and expenses associated with non-separated 

wholesale power sales are reasonable, appropriate and consistent with 

historic treatment. However, FPL anticipates that the parties will be filing 

testimony in this docket and, in accordance with Order PSC-01-0517-PCO-El 

dated March 5, 2001, Establishing Procedure in this Docket, FPL will have an 
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opportunity to address any other issues in rebuttal testimony if necessary. 

How should the Commission implement its decision in Docket No. 991779- 

El concerning the application of incentives to wholesale power sales? 

In Order No. PSC-00-1744-PAA-El the Commission decided to allow the utilities 

to split (80% to customers and 20% to shareholders) any gains on non- 

separated wholesale power sales that exceed a threshold based on a three-year 

average of gains. Consistent with our position presented in the Fuel Docket, FPL 

believes that the Commission’s decision should be implemented by using the 

methodology proposed by Staff in their memorandum dated September 20, 

2000. Staff proposes that the first two and one half years used in the calculation 

of the average would be the actual gains for those years and the final six months 

would be estimated. This data is to be supplied with the utilities’ fuel projection 

filings. Later, the threshold of gains on off system sales is to be updated with 

actual gains for the balance of the third year and filed as part of the fuel true up 

testimony. Gains on sales are to be measured against this three-year average 

threshold. FPL believes this approach is appropriate. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes, it does. 
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MR. CHILDS: And I w i l l  tender her f o r  cross 

2xami nation. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Beasley, any cross? 

MR. BEASLEY: No questions, s i r .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Mr. Badders. 

MR. BADDERS: No questions. 

MR. McGEE: No questions. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ms. Kaufman. 

MS. KAUFMAN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

3Y MS. KAUFMAN: 

Q Good morning, Ms. Dubin. 

A Good morning. 

Q L e t ' s  j u s t  t u r n  f i r s t  t o  the  memorandum and get t h a t  

out o f  the way t h a t  has been i d e n t i f i e d  as E x h i b i t  Number 3. 

klere you the author o f  t h i s  memorandum? 

A No, I was not. 

Q And would i t  be cor rec t  t h a t  you received t h i s  

memorandum, as d i d  the other pa r t i es ,  by t ransmi t ta l  from Mr. 

Keating? 

A Yes, a f t e r  meeting w i t h  him. 

Q Ms. Dubin, you were here dur ing my discussion w i t h  

Mr. Portuondo f o r  FPC, weren' t  you? 

A Yes, I was. 

Q Okay. I j u s t  want t o  ask you a s i m i l a r  question t o  

FLORIDA PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
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w h a t  I asked h i m ,  and t h a t  has t o  do w i t h  i f  - -  well, l e t  me 
ask you this f i r s t .  Are you aware of any instances where FPL 

i s  selling i ts  generation from i t s  own system and then 
simultaneously purchasing wholesale power t o  serve i t s  retail 
1 oad? 

A 

often. 
Q 
A Well, Ms. Kaufman, usually i n  a situation like t h a t  

There may be some instances of t h a t ,  b u t  not very 

B u t  i t  could occur from time t o  time? 

you may be i n  a capacity shortfall. And i n  those situations 
a l l  of Florida Power and Light ' s  nonseparated sales are a l l  

recallable. So i f  you had a s i t ua t ion  where you had an energy 
shortfall and you had t o  go out  and buy power, you would cut 
the sale before you would buy the power. 

Q So I guess w h a t  you just t o l d  us, t h a t ' s  Florida 
Power and Light ' s  policy how i t  would manage i t s  resources i n  

t h a t  situation? 
A Yes. 
Q Let's just do a hypothetical, and l e t ' s  assume t h a t  

you are i n  w h a t  we have called this  simultaneous purchase and 

sal situation, t h a t  you were purchasing - -  the power you were 
purchasing from the wholesale market was a t  a higher price t h a n  
your generation. Would you agree t h a t  t h a t  higher-priced power 
would be included i n  the calculation o f  the costs for purposes 
of calculating the ga in  t h a t  we are here discussing? 
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A Well, i f  we were making a purchase t o  s p e c i f i c a l l y  

nake a sale, we would use tha t  purchased power cost  as the 

incremental cost .  

Q 

A 

I ' m  sorry,  can you repeat tha t  again? 

I f  we were making a purchase t o  s p e c i f i c a l l y  make a 

sale, we would use tha t  purchase as the  incremental cost o f  the  

s a l  e. 

Q I ' m  struck by the word s p e c i f i c a l l y ,  so - -  
A Well, i f  we could buy power and s e l l  power and the  

i n ten t  was t o  buy tha t  power i n  order t o  s e l l  i t, you would use 

that purchased power, the  cost o f  t h a t  t o  make the  sale. 

Well, what i f  you were i n  the s i t u a t i o n  l i k e  I Q 
c l i  scussed w i th  ' Mr . Portuondo, where you had an unexpected 

forced outage and you had t o  purchase on the  wholesale market 

i n  order t o  serve your r e t a i l  load, and t h a t  purchase was the  

i i ghes t  p r iced  power on your system a t  t h a t  t ime? 

I n  t h a t  instance we would cu t  t he  sale. The sale i s  A 

reca l l  ab1 e. 

Q 

A 

So a l l  o f  your sales o f  t h a t  type are reca l lab le?  

A l l  o f  our nonseparated sales are shor t - term 

reca l l  ab1 e s a l  es , nonf i  r m .  

Q You don ' t  address i n  your testimony the O&M issue, do 

you, o r  d i d  I miss tha t?  The ca l cu la t i on  o f  incremental O&M i n  

terms o f  how we f i gu re  out the  gain? 

A I do a b i t ,  j u s t  t h a t  i t  i s  a way f o r  - - the order 
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1744 s a way f o r  the - - i t  provides a simple way t o  

calcu a te  - -  t o  account f o r  the revenues and expenses and t o  

match them up w i th  the appropriate recovery mechanism. 

Q Do you have - -  does FPL have a methodology by which 

i t  calcu lates what the  incremental O&M costs o f  those 

transact ions i s? 

A We have some instances where we have some sales 

t ransact ions where there i s  a spec i f i c  incremental cost, and 

t h a t  i s  when a sale i s  made out o f  one o f  our gas tu rb ine  

un i t s .  And i n  t h a t  case we can s p e c i f i c a l l y  i d e n t i f y  when the  

sale i s  coming out o f  those u n i t s  and we account f o r  t h a t  

s p e c i f i c  maintenance on those un i t s .  Those u n i t s  are intended 

t o  run f o r  a very shor t  per iod o f  t ime. And so when you are 

making the  sales out o f  those u n i t s  there i s  an incremental 

cost f o r  t ha t .  

Q 

A No, we don ' t .  

Q 

What about a sa le from a nongas tu rb ine  u n i t ?  

No, you don ' t  have a methodology, o r ,  no, you d o n ' t  

ca lcu late O&M? 

A We don ' t  ca lcu la te  any incremental O&M on t h a t .  

Q So there i s  no charge t o  r e t a i l  ratepayers i f  there 

i s  a sale a t  one o f  those u n i t s  f o r  incremental O&M o f  making 

the sale? 

A 

fue l  cost. 

When we are ca l cu la t i ng  the p r i c e  o f  t he  sale, i t  i s  
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Q Fuel cost only? 

A Only. 

Q Okay. I asked Mr. Portuondo t h i s ,  but  have you 

reviewed the methodologies t h a t  the other u t i l i t i e s  have 

submitted i n  regard t o  how they do t h e i r  O&M ca lcu lat ions? 

A I th ink  the only  th ing  i s  t h a t  they include i t  i n  

base and we weren't  cu r ren t l y  inc lud ing  t h a t  one GT maintenance 

pa r t  i n  fue l .  

Q Well, i f  you have looked a t  what the  other u t i l i t i e s  

have submitted, i s  i t  your view t h a t  a l l  the  u t i l i t i e s  are 

making the ca lcu la t ion  i n  the same way? 

A I guess I ' m  not  sure. I ' m  not  sure t h a t  i t  i s  i n  

tha t  depth f o r  me t o  make t h a t  determination. 

Q 

A Yes. 

So i s  i t  your answer t h a t  you don ' t  know? 

MS. KAUFMAN: Thank you. That ' s  a l l  I have, 

Commi ss i  oners . 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: M r .  Burgess. 

CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, i f  I cou 

Kaufman was t a l  k i ng  about and 

understand t h i s  perhaps re1 a t  

treatment o f  i t . With regard 

ignore fo r  the t ime being the 
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d re tu rn  t o  the  example tha t  Ms. 
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gas turb ine,  l e t ' s  say i t  comes from another u n i t  other than a 

gas turb ine.  

A Okay. 

Q I f  you have a sale a t  30 and incremental O&M expense 

might be estimated t o  be 5, and your incremental fue l  i s  20, 

what would you use as the gain f o r  purposes o f  c red i t i ng  t h a t  

i n t o  the  fue l  adjustment clause? 

A Your cost i s  30? 

Q 
A Okay. Your p r i ce  i s  30 - -  
Q 

Yes. The amount t h a t  you so ld  i t  f o r  was 30. 

Your p r i ce  i s  30, your incremental fue l  cost i s  20, 

your O&M expense - - non-GT O&M expense incremental i s  5? 

A We wouldn't  have any increment non-GT expense. That 

expense we would have i n  t h a t  would be the on ly  incremental O&M 

sal e. 

Q So i n  t h a t  case you wou 

would be credi ted? 

A Yes. 

d recognize a gain o f  10 t h a t  

Q And any O&M expense t h a t  may be incremental would 

simply be recovered through your base ra tes ,  i s  t h a t  cor rec t?  

A 

Q Now, are you f a m i l i a r  w i t h  the  language i n  Order 

With the  exception o f  t he  GTs, yes. 

1744? 

A Yes, I am. 

Q And one o f  the  th ings t h a t  i t  t h a t  included i n  i t s  
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incremental costs would include, and then sa id but  not be 

l i m i t e d  t o .  Do you know what would be incorporated i n  t h i s  

c a t c h - a l l  phrase t h a t  i s  not incorporated i n  the  spec i f i cs  t h a t  

f o l  1 ow t h a t  phrase? 

A No. 

Q Do you include anything other than those t h a t  are 

i d e n t i f i e d  i n  the ca l cu la t i on  o f  the gain? 

A No, except I guess where I would spec i f i ca l  l y  - - I ' m  

sorry,  does i t  say - -  j u s t  one minute. 

Mr. Burgess, can you t e l l  me what page you ' re  on i n  

the order? 

Q I have pu l l ed  mine out o f  a PSC repor ter .  So i t ' s  on 

423. Page 12. 

MR. CHILDS: Excuse me, would you t e l l  me where you 

are re fe r r i ng ,  again? 

MR. BURGESS: I am r e f e r r i n g  t o  the  second - -  the  

bottom o f  the  second paragraph under Section Roman numeral I11 

o f  Order 1744 t h a t  i s  found on Page 12 o f  t h a t  order. 

MR. CHILDS: Thank you. 

MR. BURGESS: The sentence beginning, "Further, we 

f i n d  t h a t  the  ca l cu la t i on  o f  incremental costs f o r  these sales 

shal l  include but  no t  be l i m i t e d  t o . "  

THE WITNESS: Well, I guess i n  the example t h a t  I 

mentioned where you are making a purchase t o  s p e c i f i c a l l y  make 
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a sale,  t ha t  purchased power cost  i s  your incremental fue l  

cost. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q So then what you would say, though, i s  t h a t  concept 

which you have j u s t  c i t ed  t o  i s  incorporated i n  the  term 

incremental fue l  cost? 

A Yes. 

Q And do you see any reason t h a t  the ca l cu la t i on  cannot 

be l i m i t e d  t o  those items t h a t  are speci f ied? 

A I c a n ' t  t h ink  o f  an instance a t  t h i s  t ime t h a t  would 

p r o h i b i t  tha t .  

Q The p o l i c y  tha t  F lo r i da  Power and L igh t  has on making 

a l l  nonseparated sales reca l lab le ,  i s  t h a t  a w r i t t e n  po l i cy?  

A I ' m  not  sure. 

Q 

A No. 

Q 

Were you involved i n  the  c rea t ion  o f  t h a t  po l i cy?  

I s  there a statement o r  are you aware o f  why t h a t  

po l i cy  ex is ts ,  can you a r t i c u l a t e  a reason f o r  having t h a t  

pol i cy?  

A Our sales are  nonfirm sales. I t  i s  the types o f  

sales t h a t  we make. I guess t h a t  i s  bas i ca l l y  what I know 

about it. 

MR. BURGESS: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Dubin. That 's  

a l l .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: S t a f f .  
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CROSS EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Ms. Dubin, when FPL economically dispatches i t s  

resources t o  serve i t s  load, does i t  d is t ingu ish  between 

resource from i t s  own generation and resources purchased from 

other generation sources? 

A No. 

Q Assuming t h a t  FPL has made a sale o f  50 megawatts o f  

wholesale energy f o r  one hour, i f  FPL must cu r ren t l y  purchase 

power from another generation source t o  serve the  l a s t  50 

megawatts o f  i t s  t o t a l  load, i s  the energy cost o f  the 

purchased power the incremental energy cost o f  FPL's 

50-megawatt who1 esal e energy sal e? 

A Yes. 

MR. CHILDS: I ' m  having t roub le  hearing you. 

MR. KEATING: Would you l i k e  f o r  me t o  repeat the  

question? 

MR. CHILDS: No. 

BY MR. KEATING: 

Q Again, assuming t h a t  F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  has made 

a 50-megawatt sale o f  wholesale energy f o r  one hour, i f  FPL can 

cur ren t ly  purchase t h i s  power from another generation source t o  

serve pa r t  o f  i t s  t o t a l  load, bu t  i n  terms o f  an economic 

dispatch, not the l a s t  50 megawatts o f  i t s  t o t a l  load, i s  the 

energy cost o f  the purchased power the incremental energy cost 
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o f  FPL's 50-megawatt sale? 

A Mr. Keating, could you repeat tha t ,  please. 

Q Certainly.  The assumption f o r  purposes o f  the 

question i s  t h a t  FPL has made a 50-megawatt wholesale 

increasing sale f o r  one hour. And i f  i t  concurrent ly purchase 

t h i s  power from another generation source t o  serve p a r t  o f  i t s  

t o t a l  load, but i n  terms o f  the dispatch - -  t he  dispatch p r i ce  

i t  i s  no t  - -  I ' m  not sure i f  I ' m  saying t h i s  c o r r e c t l y  - -  i t ' s  

not t he  l a s t  50 megawatts o f  i t s  t o t a l  load, i s  t he  energy cost 

o f  the  purchased power the incremental energy cost  o f  the 50 
megawatt sal e? 

A It i s  the incremental cost. 

Q I f  the Commission orders each u t i l i t y  t o  c r e d i t  

operating revenues w i t h  an amount equal t o  the O&M expense 

associated w i th  a nonseparated who1 esal e energy sal e, would 

o f  those O&M expenses f o r  t h a t  order create a double recovery 

FPL? 

A No. I bel ieve t h a t  there 

consistent treatment o f  those - - o f  

cu r ren t l y  includes i t  i n  the fue l  c 

r e f l e c t s ,  we would include those i n  

zero. 

i s  an attempt t o  make 

incremental O&M, and FPL 

ause. And as our pos i t ion  

base and the  net  e f f e c t  i s  

Q Are the gains and losses on nonseparated wholesale 

sales aggregated f o r  purposes o f  repor t ing  on FPL's monthly A 

Schedules? 
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A 

Q 

Yes, they are reported on the A6 Schedule. 

Do the sum o f  the gains and losses equal the  net gain 

that  t he  shareholder incent ive would apply t o ?  

COMMISSIONER JABER: I r e a l l y  want t o  hear your 

questions, so you need t o  get r i g h t  i n  the microphone and speak 

)ut  1 oud. 

MR. KEATING: I apologize, I ' m  t r y i n g .  I ' m  s l i g h t l y  

mder the  weather t h i s  morning. 

Commissioner Jaber, would you l i k e  f o r  me t o  repeat 

the l a s t  question? 

COMMISSIONER JABER: Yes. 

3Y MR. KEATING: 

Q I f  the Commission orders each u t i l i t y  t o  c r e d i t  

Dperating revenues w i t h  an amount equal t o  the  O&M expenses o f  

3 nonseparated wholesale energy sale, would t h a t  order create a 

double recovery o f  those O&M expenses f o r  F lo r i da  Power and 

Light? 

A No. 

Q 

three. For purposes o f  making sure we get a l l  o f  these c l e a r l y  

on the record, I w i l l  go ahead and ask the next two I t h i n k  I 

have asked before. 

I ' m  sorry,  I may have gone back two questions, or 

Are the gains and losses o f  nonseparated wholesale 

sales aggregated f o r  purposes o f  repor t ing  on FPL's monthly A 

Schedules? 
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Q Do the sum o f  the gains and losses equa 

tha t  the shareholder incent ive would apply to?  

A Yes. 

76 

the net gain 

Q I ' m  going t o  go back t o  a question I asked e a r l i e r  

and perhaps t r y  t o  c l a r i f y  it. 

c l e a r l y  as I could have. This was the question where the  

assumption i s  t h a t  FPL i s  making a 50-megawatt wholesale energy 

sale f o r  one hour, and FPL concurrently purchases power from 

another generation source t o  serve pa r t  o f  i t s  t o t a l  load. And 

perhaps t o  c l a r i f y  the  assumptions, the  power purchase from 

tha t  generation source would be dispatched before other FPL 

generation t h a t  would be used t o  serve i t s  t o t a l  load a t  t h a t  

time. Based on t h a t  assumption, i s  the energy cost o f  the  

purchased power the  incremental energy cost  o f  FPL's 

50 -megawatt s a l  e? 

I ' m  not  sure t h a t  I asked i t  as 

A I ' m  sorry,  i s  the cost o f  the purchased power o r  the  

cost o f  the sale? I ' m  sorry,  Cochran, I d i d n ' t  - -  

Q I n  t h a t  example i s  the cost o f  t he  purchased power 

FPL's incremental cost? 

A I f  i t  i s  not  purchased t o  make a sa le,  no. 

Q Okay. I j u s t  have a few questions concerning I 

bel ieve what i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as Exh ib i t  3,  and t h a t  i s  the  

September 20th s t a f f  memorandum. I assume you have read i t  and 

are f a m i l i a r  w i t h  it? 
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A Yes. 

Q And i n  your testimony a t  Page 7, L ine 8, you s ta te  

tha t  consistent w i th  our pos i t i on  presented i n  the  fue l  docket, 

FPL bel ieves t h a t  the Commission's decis ion should be 

implemented by using the methodology proposed by s t a f f  i n  t h e i r  

memorandum dated September 20th, 2000, i s  t h a t  correct? 

A Yes. 

Q And i s  the memorandum t h a t  i s  i d e n t i f i e d  as E x h i b i t  3 

the memorandum you are r e f e r r i n g  to?  

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Okay. So i s  it cor rec t  t h a t  you support the 

procedural mechanisms t h a t  are se t  up i n  t h a t  memorandum? 

A Yes. 

Q Looking a t  the bottom o f  the  f i r s t  page o f  the 

memorandum s t a r t i n g  w i t h  the - - 
A Mr. Keating, I ' m  sorry,  I d o n ' t  have one o f  those i n  

f r o n t  o f  me. 

Q 

t o  you. 

I ' m  sorry,  I bel ieve we have a copy t h a t  we can b r i n g  

Looking a t  the bottom o f  the  f i r s t  page o f  the 

memorandum, s t a r t i n g  w i t h  the f i r s t  numbered paragraph. This 

i s  a f t e r  the  f i r s t  two numbered paragraphs, Number 1 and 2, and 

t h i s  i s  where i t  picks up w i t h  Number 1 again. 

read through what i s  proposed as a procedural mechanism i n  

Paragraphs 1 through 7, which ends on Page 3 o f  the memorandum, 

I f  I were t o  
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~ o u l d  t h a t  essen t ia l l y  be the mechanism tha t  you are proposing 

i n  your testimony? 

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Just one l a s t  question. You said you have read i t  

md are f a m i l i a r  w i th  it, do you understand the proposal t h a t  

i s  set  f o r t h  i n  t h a t  memorandum? 

A Yes. 

Q And i f  you were asked questions about t h a t  proposal, 

vould you be able t o  address them? 

A Yes. 

MR. KEATING: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I assume we are  going t o  have some 

j iscussion on these exh ib i t s ,  so before we go t o  r e d i r e c t  and 

:ome back t o  the  exh ib i t s ,  why don ' t  we take a break. We w i l l  

:ome back i n  15 minutes. 

(Recess. 1 
CHAIRMAN JACOBS: We w i l l  go back on the  record. 

MR. BURGESS: Chairman Jacobs, I am going t o  ask your 

I had impl ied t o  Commissioner Jaber indulgence f o r  one minute. 

t ha t  I would ask questions about the  e f f e c t  o f  O&M expenses 

being included i n  base ra tes  on a couple o f  po in ts  t h a t  t he  

Commissioner had raised, and I would ask i f  I would be able t o  

add two questions t o  my cross examination. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Go r i g h t  ahead. 

CONTINUED CROSS EXAMINATION 
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3Y MR. BURGESS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, does F lo r ida  Power and L i g h t ' s  inc lus ion  

D f  the  incremental O&M expenses i n  base rates s i g n i f i c a n t l y  

diminish the mot ivat ion F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  has t o  make 

nonseparated o f f  - system sales? 

MR. CHILDS: I ' m  going t o  ob ject  t o  t h a t  question on 

the basis t h a t  I don ' t  t h i n k  i t  has been establ ished tha t  

incremental O&M i s  included i n  base rates.  

MR. BURGESS: Okay. I f  I may, I w i l l  rephrase the 

question t o  - - because t h a t ' s  not  a controversy t h a t  r e a l l y  

f latters t o  the  po in t  o f  my question. 

BY MR. BURGESS: 

Q Does the f a c t  t h a t  F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  does not  

seek t o  have incremental O&M expense other than the  gas tu rb ine  

expenses recovered through fue l  adjustment c l  ause, does t h a t  

f a c t  s i g n i f i c a n t l y  diminish F lo r ida  Power and L i g h t ' s  

motivation t o  make these of f -system sales? 

A No. I th ink ,  t o  pu t  i t  i n  perspective, incremental 

GT maintenance runs about $950,000 a year. And we are t a l k i n g  

about our gains f o r  2000 were almost 40 m i l l i o n .  

Q I f  F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  does inc lude them o r  

choose t o  include them i n  the  incremental O&M expenses t h a t  are 

not recovered i n  the fue l  adjustment , instead are incorporated 

i n  base rates,  does t h a t  generate a s i g n i f i c a n t  need f o r  base 

r a t e  cases t h a t  otherwi se woul dn t be necessary? 
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A No. You would put the expenses and revenues together 

and the  net e f f e c t  i s  zero. 

MR. BURGESS: Thank you, Ms. Dubin. Thank you very 

much, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Very we1 1 . Commi ssioners, any 

questions? Redirect. 

MR. CHILDS: I have several. 

RED1 RECT EXAM1 NATION 

BY MR. CHILDS: 

Q Ms. Dubin, would you look t o  the  September 20, 2000 

memorandum tha t  you have discussed previously.  

A I have i t  i n  f r o n t  o f  me. 

Q You were asked, I bel ieve, whether you received t h i s  

memorandum by t ransmi t ta l  from Mr. Keating l i k e  everyone e lse  

d id .  I bel ieve a question t o  t h a t  e f fec t ,  do you r e c a l l  it? 

A Yes. 

Q Do you reca l l  t he  purpose o f  the  t ransmi t ta l  o f  t h i s  

memo t o  the  pa r t i es  i n  the  docket? 

A Yes. A t  the  end o f  the other proceeding the  

Commissioners asked t h a t  the  pa r t i es  get together, the s t a f f  

get  together w i th  the pa r t i es  t o  come up w i t h  an 

implementation, and s t a f f  put  t h i s  memorandum together t o  

memorialize what had been discussed. 

Q Would you t u r n  t o  Page 3 o f  t h a t  memorandum and look 

a t  the c l  os i  ng sentence. 
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A Okay. 

Q It reads i f  you have any questions or  comments 

Zoncerning s t a f f ' s  proposal please contact, and then i t  

Zontinues. Do you r e c a l l  F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  having made 

my contact t o  the s t a f f  about t h i s  methodology? 

A No. 

Q Do you r e c a l l  anyone e lse making contact w i t h  the  

s t a f f  and communicating i t  t o  you about t h e i r  concern o r  t h e i r  

suggested changes t o  the  s t a f f  methodology? 

A No. 

Q As t o  the methodology t h a t  you address i n  your 

testimony, would you agree t h a t  the  methodology t h a t  you are 

2ddressing begins w i t h  numbered Paragraph 1 a t  the  bottom o f  

)age 1 o f  the memo? 

A Yes. 

Q And continues through Paragraph Number 7 on Page 3 o f  

the memorandum? 

A Yes. 

Q 

jt Page 12? 

Would you look t o  the Order PSC-001744 f o r  a moment 

A Okay. 

Q And look t o  the  numbered Paragraph 1 a t  the bottom o f  

the page? 

A Okay. 

Q That i s  the subject o f  Issue 2 i n  t h i s  hearing, i s  i t  
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l o t ?  

A Yes, i t  i s .  

Q Would you look a t  the word incremental fue l  cost  i n  

tha t  paragraph f o r  a moment? 

A Okay. 

Q Does F lo r ida  Power and L igh t  Company rou t i ne l y  

include the cost o f  fue l  f o r  purchased power i n  the fue l  

adjustment clause computation? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q And i t  includes the fue l  cost  o f  i t s  own generation 

i n  the  computation o f  the fue l  adjustment charges? 

A Yes, i t  does. 

Q 
i s  it? 

So t h i s  i s  nothing d i f f e r e n t  i n  terms o f  a procedure, 

A No. 

Q As t o  the  incremental cost ,  what does FPL use the  

incremental cost f o r  i n  i t s  operations? And by incremental 

cost o f  fue l ,  I mean as used i n  t h i s  order t h a t  we are j u s t  

r e f e r r i n g  to .  

A I t i s  used t o  ca lcu late the  p r i c e  o f  a sales 

t ransact ion t h a t  i s  used f o r  dispatch. 

Q 
A 

And how i s  i t  used f o r  dispatch? 

It i s  used t o  determine the cost o f  the next megawatt 

hour. 

Q Can you t e l l  me i t s  use, i f  any, associated w i t h  
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e i the r  purchases from other u t i l i t i e s  o r  sales t o  other 

u t i  1 i t i e s ?  

A It i s  used t o  determine the  cost o f  the  sales and the 

cost-ef fect iveness o f  the purchase. 

Q And i f  you knew - - i f  FPL knew t h a t  i t  was going t o  

have a u n i t  go o f f - l i n e  i n  the  fu ture,  i f  i t  knew tha t ,  t h a t  

vJould be the  cost - - and i t  had t o  purchase power, then t h a t  

vJould be the  cost i t  would use f o r  a possible of f -system sale, 

i s  t h a t  r i g h t ?  

A Yes. 

Q But i f  i t  doesn't  know t h a t ,  then i t ' s  going t o  use 

i t s  own incremental cost f o r  purposes o f  p r i c ing?  

A Yes. 

Q And does the  u t i l i t y  when i t  makes an of f -system sale 

always attempt t o  achieve a purchase p r i c e  t h a t  exceeds i t s  

estimate o f  fue l  cost? 

A Yes, t h a t ' s  why we make them. 

Q Has FPL proposed t o  ad just  the  gain so t h a t  i f  i t  

nakes a purchase of f -system a t  a p r i c e  t h a t  i s  l ess  than i t s  

incremental cost t h a t  the  gain would be increased? 

A No. 

MR. CHILDS: That 's  a l l .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Exh ib i ts .  

MR. CHILDS: I had the  l i s t  here. I t h i n k  i t  i s  - -  
no, excuse me, 2 - - 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Ac tua l l y  i t  i s  3, 4 and 5. 

MR. CHILDS: Two, 3, and 4? 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Three, 4, and 5. 

MR. CHILDS: Three, 4, and 5. I want t o  comment on 

the memorandum f o r  a moment. Objection was made t o  these on 

the basis t h a t  Ms. Dubin d i d n ' t  author it. And I t h i n k  t h a t  i s  

c lear t h a t  she d i d n ' t  author it, but  she d i d  adopt the 

methodology i n  the memorandum as the  methodology t h a t  she 

recommended, and t h i  s memori a1 izes what t h a t  methodol ogy i s .  

MS. KAUFMAN: Mr. Chairman, I don ' t  mean t o  i n t e r r u p t  

or cut  Mr. Childs o f f ,  but  - -  
MR. CHILDS: But you d id .  

MS. KAUFMAN: I did .  But I was j u s t  going t o  

hopeful ly shorten t h i s  and l e t  you know t h a t  we w i l l  withdraw 

our ob ject ion t o  the memorandum since there seems t o  be so much 

in te res t  i n  it, so long as Mr. Kordecki has the  opportuni ty t o  

comment on i t  when he takes the stand. 

MR. CHILDS: I w i l l  move them i n t o  evidence then, a l l  

o f  the exh ib i t s  f o r  Ms. Dubin. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Any other object ions? And 

there were no objections t o  the other two exh ib i t s?  

MS. KAUFMAN: No, Mr. Chairman. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: So then show Exh ib i ts ,  3 ,  4, and 5 

are  admitted i n t o  the record. 

(Exh ib i ts  3, 4, and 5 admitted i n t o  the  record.) 
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CHAIRMAN JACOBS: I had a question k ind  o f  going t o  

the l a s t  round o f  questioning. A l l  pa r t i es  d i d  have an 

opportuni ty t o  r a i s e  any issues w i th  regard t o  the  memo, and I 

assume i f  one had wanted t o  engage i n  discovery w i t h  regard t o  

the memo tha t  you had t h a t  opportuni ty,  as we l l ?  

MS. KAUFMAN: Well, Mr. Chairman, I ' m  not  sure whom 

de would have asked about i t  since i t  had no sponsoring 

ditness, but  I th ink  we have gotten past t h a t  anyway by 

dithdraw ng our ob ject ion t o  it. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Okay. Very we l l .  

Thank you, Ms. Dubin. You are excused. 

THE WITNESS: Thank you. 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Gul f . 

MR. BADDERS: It appears the  next witness would be 

d i  tness R i  tenour. Her p r e f i  1 ed d i r e c t  testimony on ly  addresses 

Issue Number 1. We had l i s t e d  her f o r  Issue 4 on ly  inso far  as 

to say we can agree w i t h  s t a f f ' s  pos i t i on  on Issue 4. 

i iscussed tha t  w i th  the other pa r t i es ,  and i t  i s  my 

inderstanding no one has questions f o r  Ms. Ritenour. 

I have 

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: That being the case, then we can 

s t ipu la te  Ms. Ri tenour 's testimony i n t o  the  record. 

uant t o  o f f e r  it, Mr. Badders? 

Do you 

MR. BADDERS: Thank you. 

MR. BEASLEY: Commi ssioners , we would request c a l l  i ng 

4r. Brown ahead o f  Ms. Jordan, and I have mentioned t h a t  t o  the 
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par t ies .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Before we do t h a t ,  l e t ' s  make sure 

we i n s e r t  Ms. Ri tenour 's  testimony i n t o  the  record. 

MR. BADDERS: We o f f e r  i t  t o  be s t i pu la ted  i n t o  the 

record as though read. There are no changes t o  t h a t .  

CHAIRMAN JACOBS: Without ob ject ion,  show Ms. 

R i  tenour 's  testimony i s  entered i n t o  the record. 
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GULF POWER COMPANY 

Before the Florida Public Service Commission 
Direct Testimony of 
Susan D. Ritenour 

Docket No. 010283-E1 
Date of Filing: April 20, 2001 

Please state your name, business address and 

occupation. 

My name is Susan Ritenour. My business address is One 

Energy Place, Pensacola, Florida 32520. I hold the 

position of Assistant Secretary and Assistant 

Treasurer for Gulf Power Company. In this position, I 

am responsible for supervising the Rates and 

Regulatory Matters Department. 

Please briefly describe your educational background 

and business experience. 

I graduated from Wake Forest University in 

Winston-Salem, North Carolina in 1981 with a Bachelor 

of Science Degree in Business and from the University 

of West Florida in 1982 with a Bachelor of Arts Degree 

in Accounting. I am also a Certified Public 

Accountant licensed in the State of Florida. I joined 

Gulf Power Company in 1983 as a Financial Analyst. 

Prior to assuming my current position, I have held 

various positions with Gulf including Computer 
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Modeling Analyst, Senior Financial Analyst, and 

Supervisor of Rate Services. 

My responsibilities include supervision of: 

tariff administration, cost of service activities, 

calculation of cost recovery factors, the regulatory 

filing function of the Rates and Regulatory Matters 

Department and various treasury activities. 

What is the purpose of your testimony? 

The purpose of my testimony is to support Gulf Power 

Company‘s request for an exception to the Commission’s 

proposed regulatory treatment of the credit for SO2 

emission allowances related to short-term wholesale 

sales through the environmental cost recovery clause 

(ECRC). Gulf currently credits these allowance costs 

through the fuel and purchased power cost recovery 

clause. The amount of this credit is so small as to 

be insignificant when compared to the administrative 

burden associated with complying with the Commission’s 

proposed requirement. As a result, Gulf seeks an 

exception to the proposed requirement that would allow 

the Company to continue providing these credits to 

customers through the fuel clause. 

25  
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Please provide some background on how this issue 

developed. 

In late 1999, Docket 991779-E1 was established to 

review the appropriate application of incentives to 

wholesale power sales by investor-owned electric 

utilities. A hearing was held on this matter on 

May 10, 2 0 0 0 ,  and the Commission issued Order No. 

PSC-00-1744-PAA-E1 on September 26, 2 0 0 0  approving an 

incentive mechanism for certain non-separated 

wholesale power sales. In that order, the Commission 

specified that the gain on non-separated wholesale 

sales should be calculated as the difference between 

the revenue received for that sale less its 

incremental costs, including incremental fuel cost, 

incremental SO2 emission allowance cost, incremental 

0 & M cost, and separately-identified transmission or 

capacity charges. The Commission went on to propose 

the regulatory treatment for each of these revenue and 

incremental expense items. For the incremental SO2 

emission allowance costs associated with non-separated 

wholesale sales, the Commission proposed that “except 

for FPC, each IOU shall credit its environmental cost 

recovery clause for an amount equal to the incremental 

SO2 emission allowance cost of generating the energy 

for each such sale. FPC, because it does not have an 

Docket No. 010283-E1 Page 3 Witness: Susan D. Ritenour 
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environmental cost recovery clause, shall credit this 

cost to its fuel and purchased power cost recovery 

clause. ” 

What is the purpose of the stated requirement? 

It appears that the intent of the requirement is to 

offset the actual SO2 emission allowance costs 

associated with Gulf’s generation with a credit to 

reflect the allowance costs associated with the short- 

term wholesale sales. 

What exception is Gulf requesting in this proceeding 

related to this proposed regulatory treatment? 

Gulf agrees that it is appropriate to give the 

customers credit for the cost of allowances related to 

energy sold through non-separated wholesale sales, and 

that for certain utilities the proposed regulatory 

treatment may be fair and reasonable. However, for 

Gulf Power, it is more appropriate to credit the 

incremental SO2 allowance cost associated with non- 

separated wholesale sales through the fuel clause 

rather than through the ECRC as proposed in Order No. 

PSC-00-1744-PAA-EI. Therefore, Gulf is requesting an 

exception to this newly proposed requirement. 

Docket No. 010283-E1 Page 4 Witness: Susan D. Ritenour 
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Why is it more appropriate for Gulf to credit the SO2 

allowance costs associated with non-separated 

wholesale sales through the fuel clause? 

The weighted-average cost of Gulf’s SO2 allowances is 

very low, because most of the allowances we own were 

allocated to us by the Environmental Protection Agency 

at no cost. Gulf does not purchase allowances on a 

regular basis. The total dollar amount of SO2 

emission allowance expense related to Gulf’s 

generation was $7,302 in 1999 and $45,136 in 2 0 0 0 .  

Only a small fraction of these amounts related to non- 

separated wholesale power sales. Total emission 

allowance expense makes up less than one percent of 

Gulf’s environmental costs recoverable through the 

ECRC. Gulf is currently crediting the SO2 allowance 

costs associated with non-separated wholesale sales 

through the fuel clause, along with the incremental 

cost of fuel associated with these sales. From an 

administrative perspective, it is less burdensome for 

Gulf to continue this regulatory treatment than it 

would be to change its practices to treat the 

allowance cost credit separately through the ECRC. 

This is the same regulatory treatment that will be 

used by Florida Power Corporation under the 

Commission’s Order. 

Docket No. 010283-E1 Page 5 Witness: Susan D. Ritenour 
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What impact does this alternative regulatory treatment 

have on the cost to each customer? 

The impact is the same on the customer's cost whether 

the SO2 allowance costs associated with non-separated 

wholesale sales are credited through the fuel clause 

or through the ECRC. In both clauses, the costs would 

be allocated to customers based on energy. The total 

cost per kWh each customer pays would be the same. 

Does this conclude your testimony? 

Yes. 

(Transcript follows in sequence in Voluine 2.) 
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